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E Lauterbach &, Amen, LLP
27W457 WARRENVILLE RD. . WARRENVILLE, ILLINOIS 60555

PHONE 630.393.1483 . FAX 630.393.2516

www. lauterbachamen.com
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

August 20,2015

The Honorable Village President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of South Chicago Heights, Illinois

IV'e have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of South Chicago

Heights, Illinois, as of and for the year ended December 3I,2014, and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes

the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of fînancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

effor.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted

our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error' In

making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Village's preparation

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's

internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of aceounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

V/e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffieient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respectivà financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,

und th. aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of South Chicago Heights, Illinois, as of
December 31,2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows

thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America.
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Other Matters

Re quir e d Suppl e ment ary Informat i on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents and budgetary information reported in the
required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Village of South Chicago Heights, Illinois', financial statements as a whole. The other
supplemental schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules and
supplemental schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic hnancial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial
statements and budgetary comparison schedules and supplemental schedules are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

't 
fruJ*'A . C]^^t¿Pdat

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Village of South Chicago Heights, we offer readers of the
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Village
of South Chicago Heights for the fiscal year ended December 31,2014. We encourage readers
to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the basic and supplementary
financial information provided in this report.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the Village of South Chicago Heights exceeded its liabilities at the close of
the most recent fiscal year by $8,973,876 (net position). Of this amount, $1,279,445
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the Village's ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

The Village's total net position increased by $220,362 in fiscal year 2014. Purchases
and improvements of capital assets, along with the retirement of debt associated with
them increased the net investment in capital assets by $710,593. Restricted net position
increased by $320,482 and unrestricted net position decreased $254,713. The increase
in net position from governmental activities was $617 ,160 more than the prior fiscal year
and increase in net position from businesstype activities was $2,812 less than the prior
fiscal year.

As of the close of the current fiscal year the Village's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $3,059,257, an increase of $332,675 in comparison
with the prior year. Of this total amount, $594,468 is available for spending at the
Village's discretion (unassigned fund balance).

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$604,454, or 14.8o/o of annualized total General Fund expenditures. The General Fund
posted a net increase of $247,106 from operations and a total change in fund balance of
$38,761 after transfers to and from other funds.

The Village's total debt decreased by $700,991 (24.5o/o) during the current fiscal year
One installment note and two capital leases were retired, and no new debt issued.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Village of
South Chicago Heights' basic financial statements. The Village's basic financial statements are
comprised of three components: 1) governmental-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial
statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
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Government-wide financial statements - The governmental-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Village of South Chicago Heights'
finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Village's assets/deferred
outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net
position. Over time increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the Village is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Village's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Village
include general government, public safety, highways and street and culture and recreation. The
business{ype activities of the Village include water and sewer operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14-16 of this report.

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Village, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village
can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental funds - are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term fi nanci ng req uirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long{erm impact of the
government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and
the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The Village of South Chicago Heights maintains eight individual governmental funds.
lnformation is presented separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the
governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for
the General Fund, Non-home Rule Sales Taxes Fund, Debt Service Fund, and Tax lncrement
Financing Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other four
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. lndividual fund data
for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
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elsewhere in this report.
The Village adopts an annual appropriations ordinance for its governmental funds.

Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the governmental funds to
demonstrate compliance with this ordinance.

Thebasicgovernmental fundfinancial statementscanbefoundonpageslT-21 of this
report.

Proprietary funds - used by the Village are of the enterprise type. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business{ype activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The Village uses enterprise funds to account for its water operation, sewer
operation and rental of property held for future use.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Water Fund, Sewer Fund and Property Management Fund,, which are

considered to be major funds of the Village.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this

report.

Fiduciary funds - are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Village's own programs.

The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.
The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25-26 of this report.

Notes to the financiat statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the governmental-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 27-54 of this report.

Other information - ln addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this

report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Village's
progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required
supplementary information can be found on pages 55-95 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental

funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions.

Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 96-116 of this
report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a

government's financial position. ln the case of the Village of South Chicago Heights, assets
exceeded liabilities by $8,976,376 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the Village of South Chicago Heights's net position (55%) reflects
its investment in capital assets (land, buildings, infrastructure and equipment), less any related
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assets
to provide services to citizens; consequently these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the Village's investments in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Village of South Chicago Heights Net Position

Cor,ernmental activities Business-type activities ïotal
12t31t2014 12t31t2013 12t31t2014 12t31t2013 12t31t2014 1231t2013

fi 261,437Current asseb

Capitalassets
Total assets

$ 6,628,136 $ 6,171,681

2,996,298 2,868,457

'.w,624,434 -$ 
9^o4oJ38

107 2U
$ 4,368,671

$ 406,097

4,225,546
'$l^æ1s43

$ 6,889,573

7,103,532

g 6,577,778

7,094,003

$ 13,993,105 $ 13,671,781

Current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position

lnlested in capital asseß
net of related debt

Resficted

Unreskicted
Total net position

$ 1,337,726

1,223,768

g 1,722,970

832,801

$ 2,417,393

2,601,836
$ 2,719,561

2,7U,706
$ 1,079,667 $ 996,591

1,378,068 1,921,905

$ 2,561,494 g 2,555,771 fi 2,457,735 $ 2,918,496 $ 5,019,229 $ 5,474,267

g 2,u7,928
2,755,283

1,459,729

s 2,560,412

2,434,801

1,489,154

$ 2,091,220

(180,284)

$ 1,668,143

45,004

$ 4,228,555

2AU,801
1,534,158

$ 939,1 48

755,283

279,445

4,

2,

1,

$ 7,062,%0 $ 6,484,367 $ 1,910,936 S 1,713,147 $ 8,973,876 $ 8,197,514

The next largest portion of the Village's net position (31o/o) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted
net position (14o/o) may be used to meet the Village's ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year the Village is able to report positive balances in all
three categories of net position for the government as a whole.

The Village's net position increased by $776,362 during the current fiscal year.
Operating results for governmental activities turned around significantly from the prior year's
below break-even result in equal parts from increases in tax collections and from capital grants
and contributions for road projects. Net asset of the business{ype activities increased in an
amount very similar to the prior year as the continued pay-off of long{erm debt positively
affected the balance of the investment in capital assets net of related debt. Despite the notable
increase in net position, the overall cash and investment position of the Village increased only
3% from the prior fiscal year end. This is consistent with expectations since much of the net
position increase resulted from the reduction of capital-related debt and from capital
contributions.

Governmental activities
Governmental activities increased the Village's net position by $578,573 in the current

year. Compared to last fiscal year revenues increased 16.9% and expenses increased 4.1o/o.

Although overall property tax revenue increased 22.7o/o during the year, it resulted from
an increase in receivables and not in cash flow. Due to the weak real estate market in the
South Suburbs collection rates for the 2010 through 2013 tax levy years have fallen from the
historic range of 98% - 10!o/o to the 89o/o - 95% range for corporate levies. This trend is even
more negative in the Village's TIF areas where declining market values and property owner
disinvestment has dropped collection rates below 90%. The Village continues to levy the
maximum amount allowed under State tax caps, but new growth in assessed value has been
near zero for several years. On the positive side, the receivable amount from prior year levies
has stabilized and taxes are now received earlier in the year due to efficiencies enacted by the
Village's collection agent, Cook County.
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Village of South Chicago Heights Changes in Net Position

Golernmentalactivities Business-type activities Total

12t31t2014 12t31t2013 1231t2014 12t31t2013 12t31t2014 12t31t2013

Relenues:

Program re\enues

Charges for services

Operating granb & contributions

Capital grants & confibutions

General re\enues

Property tarcs
State shared tales

Ofter tares

Oher relenues

Total relenues

$ 1,048,213 $ 1,087,430 $ r,102,049

25,953

(22,939)

'1,339,096

2,023,241

361,904

43,394

483,351 447,208

$ 965,078

63,208

419,725

$ 2,052,508

63,208

419,725

2,126,351

2,106,272

395,064

40,803

$ 2,150,262

25,953

(22,939)

1,786,304

2,023,241

361,904

55,894

1,643,000

2,106,272

395,064

40,803

$ 5,633,1s0

12,500

$ 4,818,862 $ 1,570,781 $ 1,561,757 $ 7,203,931 $ 6,380,619

Epenses:

General golernment

Public safety

Highways & steeb
Sanitation

Culture & recreation

lnterest on long-term debt

Water system

Seuer system

Property management

Totalepenses

ïransfers

$ 1,406,990

2,625,129

527,261

250,838

124,600

13,459

$ 1,288,890

2,570,663

512,753

236,538

128,118

15,487

$ 1,406,990

2,625,129

527,261

250,838

124,600

13,459

1,269,501

109,182

100,609

$ 1,288,890

2,570,663

512,753

236,538

128,118

15,487

1,252,493

85,409

128,254

$ $

1,269,50'l

109,182

100,609

1,252,493

85,409

128,254

$ 4,948,277 $ 4,752,449 $ 1,479,292 $ 1,466,156 $ 6,427,569 $ 6,218,605

$ (106,300) $ (105,ooo) $ 106,300 $ 105,000 $ $

lncrease (decrease) in net position

Net position, January 1

f,let position, December 31

$ 578,573

$ 6,484,367

$ (38,587)

$ 6,522,954

$ 197,789

$ 1,713,147

$ 200,601

$ 1,512,546

$ 776,362

$ 8,197,514

$ 162,014

$ 8,035,500

$ 7,062,940 $ 6,484,367 $ 1,910,936 fi 1,713,147 $ 8,973,876 $ 8,197,514

State shared taxes accounted for a significant portion of the Village's change in revenue,
particularly sales and income taxes. Total sales taxes increased 7.8o/o and income taxes
decreased 9.3% while all other intergovernmental sources (use, motor fuel telecommunications
and personal property replacement taxes) increased 7.5o/o lrom the prior year. The largest
percentage increase has come from the State video gaming tax which rose 237o/o from the prior
fiscal year; while we expect this revenue to flatten over time it has been a welcome supplement
to the Village's intergovernmental sources. Tax distributions from the State of lllinois remained
at three months in arrears at the end of 2014.
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Program Revenues and Expenses - Governmental Activities
s3,000,000

s2,s00,000

s2,000,000

Sl,soo,ooo

s1,000,000

Ssoo,ooo

s- -I n FF -i

Culture and
recreâtion

General
government

Public safety Highways and
streets

Sanitat¡on lnterest on long-
term debt

m revenues

Revenues by Source - GovernmentalActivities
Otlrer state slrared

ttxes
6o/o

Otlrergeneral
rev€nues (harges for servirer

L7o/o

Seler taxes
24t/o

Oper¡ting gràrìts

to/a

Càpilàl gråtìtt
BYa

stðte ir'¡corììe tãx

7è/o

Utility taxes
7%

Prop€rty tàxes
29o/"

The Village continues to apply for grants from the Community Development Block Grant
program administered by Cook County. ln 2014 the Village was approved for a $160,000 CDBG
grant after being passed over the previous year, however the revenue will not be received until
2015. ln addition, the Village continues to apply for and receive State and local grants for
various public safety enforcement programs with a total of $43,983 earned in 2014.

Overall charges for services decreased 7.9o/o, with the greatest negative change in fine
and forfeiture revenue generated by public safety operations (-61.0%). Positive changes were
also seen in ambulance fees, up 5.3% and garbage fees, up 18.4o/o. Current year rental income
increased 18.3o/o as the Village added a second telecom antenna ground lease which are
supplemented by amort¡zed revenue from the lump sum sale of a site lease through 2076.
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Expenses - Governmental Activities

Sarritation
(ulture and recreation

hìterest orr long-terrn
debt
0%5o/o

Hþltvays arrcl streets
tt%

General governnrent
270Á

Public safety
5Jn/o

Overall expenses increased 3.9% from the last fiscal year with a 8.8% increase in general
government services leading the way. While recreation program expenses decreased 2.4%
public safety services increased 1.9o/o, highways & streets services increased 2.8o/o, and
sanitation services increased 6.Oo/o.

Busi ness-type activities
Business-type activ¡ties increased the Village's net position by $t 97,789, with positive

results (exclusive of depreciation) in both the Water and Sewer funds. Customer charges for
water and sewer continue to be adjusted annually in order to ensure the activities remain self-
supporting. Rental income in the Property Management Fund is insutficient to cover all of its
start-up costs so it will require support from the TIF Fund until its outstanding debt is retired in
fiscal year 2015.

Program Revenues and Expenses - Business-type Activities
s1,400,000

91,200,000

51,000,000

s800,000

$600,000

s400,000

s200,000

(- _.I
Prol)erty ülanagenentWater 9elver

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the Village of South Chicago Heights uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate com pliance with finance-related legal req u i rements.

9
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Governmental funds - The focus of the Village's governmental funds is to provide information on

near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the Village's financing requirements. ln particular, unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of
the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Village's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $3,059,257, an increase of $332,675 in comparison with the
prior year. Of this total amount $2,029,868 is restricted for capital projects and/or tax relief,

$390,859 is restricted for improvements within the Village's TIF area, $878 is restricted for State
approved street projects, $7,815 is restricted for debt service, and $11,118 is non-spendable;
the remainder constitutes unassigned fund balance.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $604,454. As a measure of the
General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare unreserved fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 14.8o/o of total annualized General Fund
expenditures.

The fund balance of the Village's General Fund increased by $38,761 during the current
fiscal year including a non-recurring $50,000 transfer from the Non-home Rule Sales Taxes
Fund. Actual expenditures were $542,552less than what was budgeted and revenues were

$191,108 more than estimated. Revenues have finally recovered to the level of four years ago
prior to the recent recession, however this has enabled the Village to merely stay level with
inflationary increases in expenditures, leaving little opportunity for improvements to existing
service levels.

The Non-home Rule Sales Taxes Fund accounts for revenues from the Village's
specially implemented 1o/o non-home rule sales tax. Revenues are being accumulated in this
fund to finance, via transfers, capital projects in other funds. For the year, fund balance
increased $425,163 and total accumulated fund balance of $2,039,468 is designated for future
projects. Based on the trend of the past few years, the revenue estimate for this fund was
lowered in 2014, and actual results substantially exceeded the estimate.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for most of the Village's long-term notes. Fund

balance remained at an accumulated total of $7,815 at fiscal year end. Since the Village's
bonded debt is now accounted for in the Water Fund, fund balance has been purposely reduced
to a minimal level.

The fund balance of the Tax lncrement Financing Fund decreased by $45,530 during the
current fiscal year and actual expenditures were $75,848 less than the original budget because
some planned land acquisitions were deferred and lower increment revenue resulted in a lower
sharing payment to partner/developers. TIF increment revenue rebounded $30,326 from last
year's steep decline, prompting hopes that the decline in assessed values of properties in Area
#1 have stabilized. Areas #2 and #3 have not yet produced any increment and the Village plans
to terminate them early with the intent of re-establishing them with new bases at their current,
lower assessment level values.

Proprietary funds - The Village's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Net position of the Water Fund at the end of the current fiscal year amounted to
$125,074, with $438,677 of this amount being the Village's net investment in capital assets of
the water system. The total increase in net position was $152,252 and actual expenses were

$380,069 less than what was budgeted.
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Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities

Property taxes

29o/o

Clrarges for services

659o

Net position of the Sewer Fund at the end of the current fiscal year amounted to
$1,511,419 with $1 ,174,198 of this amount being the Village's net investment in capital assets
of the sewer system. The total increase in net position was $36,296 and actual expenses were
$290,954 less than what was budgeted.

Expenses - Business-type Activities

Selver

Property nìànâgement
7%

Wàter
86%

Net position of the Property Management Fund amounted to 8274,443 with $478,345 of
this amount being the Village's net investment in capital assets. The total increase in net
position was $9,241 entirely attributable to a cash transfer from the Tax lncrement Financing
Fund. Continuing annual subsidies to this fund are expected in the near-term until the held
properties are further developed as part of the planned Metra commuter rail expansion.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Village made no supplemental appropriation and one transfer of appropriations
during the fiscal year. Overall actual expenditures were g542,552less than budgeted, however
$3,930 of the originally budgeted contingency account was transferred to the Debt Service Fund
to cover higher than anticipated capital lease costs and $46,000 was transferred from the Senior
Center Maintenance budget to the Building Maintenance budget for unanticipated water
damage repairs at the Village Hall.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets - The Village of South Chicago Heights's net investment in capital assets for its
governmental and business-type activities as of December 31,2014, amounts to $7,103,532
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, systems, machinery
and equipment, park facilities, streets and bridges. The total increase in the Village's
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $477,081. Depreciation of these
assets reduced the total amount by $467,552 ($257,381 for governmental activities and
$210,1 71 tor business-type activities).

Village of South Ghicago Heights Gapital Assets
(net of accumulated depreciation)

Golernmental activites Business-type activitres Total

12t31t2014 12t31t2013 12t31t2014 12t31t2013 1431t2014 12t31t2013

Land

Buildings

Equipment

Vehicles

Street infrastructure

Sevrer system

Water system

Total

g 513,274

1,053,532

41,469

93,407

1,294,616

513,274

1,102,361

45,705

115,152

1,091,965

$ 291,500

399,124
48,823

6,579

$ 291,500

425,7U
55,066

20,436

1,093,631

2,339,159

'$ 4,ns,s46

8 8U,774
1,452,656

90,292

99,986

1,294,616

1,124,878

2,236,330

804,774

1,528,115

100,771

135,588
'1,091,965

1,093,631

2,339,159

$ $

1,124,878

2,236,330

$ 2,996,298 $ 2,868,457 S 4,107,234 $ 7,103,532 $ 7,094,003

Additional information on the Village's capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial
statements of this report.

Long-term debt - At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village of South Chicago Heights had
total outstanding bonded debt of $1,830,281, along with long-term notes payable of $323,507
and capital lease obligations of $10,600. These amounts are comprised of debt backed by the
full faith and credit of the Village.

The Village's total long{erm debt decreased by $700,991 (24.5Vo) during the current
fiscal year, and no new debt was issued.

Village of South Chicago Heights Outstanding Debt

Golernrnental activitres Business-type activitres Total

12131t2014 12t31t2013 12J31t2014 12t31t2013 12t31t2014 12t31t2013

General obligatron bonds

Long-term notes payable

Capital lease obligations

Total

$2
276,718

31,327

'$ 3o8p4s

$
137,774

10,600

@_

$ $ 1,830,281

185,733
$ 1,830,281

323,507

10,600

$2,214,712
327,574

15,048

214,712

604,292
46,375

$ 2,016,014 $ 2,557,334 $ 2,164,388 $ 2,865,379

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may
issue to 8.6250/o of its total equalized assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the
Village of South Chicago Heights is $5,585,400, which is significantly in excess of the Village's
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outstanding general obligation debt.
Additional information on the Village's long{erm debt can be found in the notes to the

financial statements of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

Despite the positive economic trends reported in the national media, economic growth in
South Chicago Heights and all of South Cook County remains painfully slow. While business
activity seems to have halted its downward trend of the recent recession, a full recovery has not
yet materialized. Within the Village's retail core, the stores with national or large regional
recognition continue to provide the Village with a stable sales tax base, however the large
number of vacancies within the Village's main business corridors are evidence that small, local
owners are not as secure. Privately-funded capital improvements within the business district
are still being made, but again only by the strongest property owners. ln addition, the Cook
County Assessor's office recently changed its assessment method and as a result assessed
values within the Village's tax increment financing areas have fallen appreciably leading to
significantly lower tax increment generated for redevelopment. Housing prices remain weak but
stable, and foreclosures continue to be rare.

Two major capital projects are anticipated to dominate management's efforts and the
overall Village budget for 2015. ln 2014 voters approved, by referendum, the sale of general
obligation bonds for the purpose of constructing a new public safety facility. While the primary
goal is to replace the police station, the Village is considering the option to include a new fire
station in a combined facility. Certainty of this possibility will not be known until contractor bids
are submitted and evaluated. In addition the Village will implement a water meter replacement
program in 2015 to not only replace all existing meter but also to upgrade it meter reading
system to a wireless remote read. After completion of the project, the Village anticipates the
system will generate more accurate readings, in less time and with less manpower. The more
accurate readings are also expected to bring increased revenue through the reduction of
functional losses in the system.

Water rates will increase in 2015 through both an increase in user rates and
implementation of a new meter fee which will help to offset the cost of the meter replacement
program. Sewer rates are also scheduled for an incremental increase as this revenue source
keeps up with the cost of living. As a non-home rule government, the Village has little control
over its property tax rates, so the 2015 budget include only a minimal tax increase to the extent
allowed under the State cap,

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of South
Chicago Heights's finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the Village of South Chicago Heights Finance
Director, 3317 Chicago Road, South Chicago Heights, lllinois 60412.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Statement of Net Position
December 31,2014

(The Notes to the Financial Statements are an inteoral oart of this statement)

Primary Government
Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities
TotalPrimary

nt

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles
lnternal balances
lnventories
Prepaid items

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Land
Buildings and system
lmprovements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Gurrent liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Current portion on long term liabilities

Notes Payable
Bonds Payable
Compensated Absences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes Payable
Bonds Payable
Net Pension Obligation
Net OPEB Obligation
Compensated Absences

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Position
Net lnvestment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Economic development
Highways & streets
Debt service
Capital projects / tax relief

Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 6,628,136 $ 261,437 $ 6,889,573

$ 2,356,707
593,352

2,955,083
697,225

7,534
18,235

$ 63,645 $

867,839
(697,225\

27,178

2,420,352
593,352

3,822,922

34,712
18,235

$

55,402

$ 2,996,298 $ 4,107,234 $ 7, 103,532

$g $ 4,368,671 $ 13,993,105

513,274 $
981,575

71,957
134,876

1,294,616

291,500 $
3,760,332

804,774
4,741,907

71,957
190,278

1,294,616

$ 525,803 $
102

761,422

20,693

430,594 $
354

956,397
456

761,422

170,259
495,000

33,85929,706

149,566
495,000

4,153
$1 337,726 $ 1,079,667 $ 2,417,393

g 127,677 $ 36,167 $
1,335,281

o 620

37,711
1,003,499

54,881
g 1,223,768

163,844
1,335,281

37,711
1,003,499

61,s01

$ 1,378,068 $ 2,601,836

$ 2,561 ,494 $ 2,457 735 $ 5,019,229

fi 2,847,928 $ 2,091,220 $ 4,939,148

707,122
878

7,815
2,039,468
1,459,729

707,122
878

7,815
2,039,468

(180,284',) 1

$z
14
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this

Functions / Programs Expenses

Program Relrenues
Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and
Services Contributions Contributions

$ 266,602
412,667

2,706
279,089

4,014

$ 4,705
56,545

1,958

$
3,000

416,725

Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Culture and recreation
lnterest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Property Management

Total business{ype activities

Total primary government

g 4,948,277 $ 965,078 $ ô3,208 $

$ 1,406,990
2,625,129

527,261
250,838
124,600

13 459

419,725

$ $ $ $1,269,501
109,182
100,609

945,417
138,463

3,550

$ t,479,292

$6 ,427,569 $ 2,052,509 $ 63,208 $ 419,72s

General revenues:
Property taxes
Utility taxes
State income tax
Sales taxes
Motor fuel tax
Other state shared taxes
Unrestricted investment earnings
Other general revenues
Gain on sale of capital assets

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position, January 1, as restated

Net position, December 31

1 087,430 $
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Net Revenue and Chanoes in et Position

Governmental
Activities

Prima Government

Activities Total

$$ (1,135,683) $
(2,',t52,917)

(105,872',)

28,251
(120,586)

(13,459)

(1 ,1 35,683)
(2,152,917)

(105,872)
28,251

(120,586)
(13,459)

$$

(324,084) $
29,281

(97.059)

$ (31500,266)

(324,084)
29,281

(97.059)

$ $

$ $ (391,862) $ (3e1,862)

$ (3,892,129)$(3 ,500,266) $ (39r,862)

$

$

1,643,000 $
395,064
391,973

1,374,316
102,535
237,448

11,077
27,026

2,700
(106,300) $

483,351 $ 2,126,351
395,064
391,973

1,374,316
102,535
237,448

11,077
27,026

2,700
106,300

$ 4,078,839 $ 589,651

$ 197,789

$ 1 ,713.147

$

$

$

578,573

6,484,367

$

$

776,362

8,197,514

$7 $ 1,910,936 $ 8,973,876
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
December 31,2014

ffhe Notes to the Financial Statements are an inteqral part of this statement)

General
Fund

Non-home rule
Sales Taxes

Fund

Tax lncrement
Financing

Fund
Debt Service

Fund

Liabilities, defereed inflows of resources and fund balances

$ 1,263,596 $ 535,617 $ 7,815

1 19,826
697,225

$ $ $

Assets

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments
Receivable (net of allowance for

uncollectibles)
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
lnventory

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts / vouchers payable
Accrued payroll
Due to other funds
Deposits payable

Total liabilities

$ 504,787
593,352

2,343,014
9,600
2,432

, 4,179

321,222

$ 3,457 $ 2,080,647 $ 856,839 $ 7,915,364

$ 187,721
86,400

49,7

Deferred inflows of resources
Property and intergovernmental taxes
Charges for services, fines and grants

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted for capital projects / tax relief
Restricted for economic development
Restricted for highways & streets
Restricted for debt service
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances $ 3,457,364

46.544

$ 320,665 $ $ 149.717 $

$ 1,651,941
873.693

$ 41 ,1 79 $ 316,263 $

$ 2,525 ,634 $ 41,179 $ 316,263 $

$
2,039,468

390,859

7,815
604,454

$ 611,065 $ 2,039,468 $ 390,859 $ 7.815

$$$6,61 1

_$__2,080,912_ $ 856,839 $ 7,815

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are
not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds.

Other long{erm assets are not available to pay for
current period expenditures and, threfore, are
deferred in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bond payable, are
not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities
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Non-major
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 44,892 $

171,021

15,803
3,355

2,356,707
593,352

2,955,083
706,825

18,235
7,534

$ 235,071 $ 6,637,736

$ 55,421

9,600

$ 392,859
8ô,400

9,600
46,544

$ 65,021 $ 535,403

$ $ 2,009,383
1,033,693160.000

$ 160,000 s 3.043 ,076

$ 19,158

878

(9.986)

$ 25,769
2,039,468

390,859
878

7,815
594,468

$ 10,050 $ 3,059,257

_q_?9il4_

$ 2,996,298

2,281,552

n.274.167\

$ 7,062,940
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement)

General
Fund

Non-home rule
Sales Taxes

Fund

Tax lncrement
Financing

Fund
Debt Service

Fund
Revenues

Local taxes
State shared taxes
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Rent
Grants
lnterest
Reimbursements
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current

General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Culture and recreation

Total current expenditures

Capitaloutlay

Debt service
Principal
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total debt service expenditures

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources and uses
Transfers in
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, January 1

Fund balances, December 3l

$$ 1,766,876
1,521,607

242,751
418,803
182,690
107,853
43,983

7,701
35,602

9,422

6;
$ 214,719 $ (1,300)

754 1

2033

$ 4,337,299 $ 475,163 217 922 $ (1,300)

g 1,072,937
2,160,473

371,792
250,838

93,338

$ $ 155,152 $

$ 3,949,378 $ $ 155,152 $

$ 140,804 $ $

$ $ $ $ 159,675
15 151

$ $ $ $ 174,826

$ 4,090,182 $ $ 155,152 $ 174,826

$ 247,106 $ 475,163 g 62/70 $ (176,126)

50,000
2,700

ç 174,825

(261 ,045) (50,000) (106 ,300)

$ (208,345)

$ 38,761

$ 572,304

$ (50,000)

$ 611,065

$$$

$ 425,163

$ 1,614,305

$ (106,300)

$ (43,530)

$ 434,389

$ 174,825

$

$

(1 ,301)

9,116

19
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Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 9,755
102,535

34,480
173

$ 1,990,050
2,099,305

242,751
418,803
182,690
107,853
78,463
11,077
35,602

9,422

$ 146,943 $ 5,176,016

$ 9,600
184,971
69,449

$ 1,237,689
2,345,444

441,241
250,838

93,338

$ 264.020 $ 4,368,550

$ 55,561 $ 196,365

$ $ 159,675
15,151

$ g 174,826

$ 319,581 S 4,739,741

$

$

(172,638) $ 436,275

211,135 $

(1 24,915\

435,960
2,700

(542,260)

$ 86,220 $ (103,600)

$

$

(86,418) $

96,468 $

332,675

2,726.582

$ 10,050 $ 3,059,257
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(The Notes to the Financia I Statements are an inteoral part of this statement)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (pages 15-16)

are different because:

Net change in fund balances - totalgovernmentalfunds (pages 19-20)

Governmentalfunds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
depreciation exceeded capitaloutlays in the current period.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(ie. sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net position.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds.
Principal Payments on Notes and Capital Leases Payable
lncrease in Net Pension Obligation
lncrease in Net OPEB Obligation
lncrease in Compensated Absences Payable
Decrease in Accrued lnterest

Change in net position of governmental activities (pages 15-16)

$ 332,675

(94,4041

222,245

232,189

159,675
(14,711)

(255,899)
(4,88e)
1,692

$ 578,573
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Fund Net Position
December 31,2014

(The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement)

Business-tvpe - Enterorise funds

Water Fund Sewer Fund
Property

Management Fund Totals
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (net of allowance

for uncollectibles
Due from other funds
lnventories

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated

deprecialtion)
Land
Buildings and system
Machinery and equipment

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Accrued interest payable

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year

Notes payable
Bonds payable

Due in more than one year
Notes payable
Bonds payable

Total liabilities

Net position
Net lnvestment in capital assets
Unrestricted

$ 5,023

746,933

27,178

$ 57,941 $

51,631
300,000

681

69,275

$ 63,ô45

867,839
300,000
27 178

779,134 409,572 69,956 1,258.662

750
2,345,654

6,082
1,124,878

49,320

290,750
289,800

291,500
3,760,332

55,402

2.352.486 1,174,198 580,550 4, 107,234

$3, 131,620 $ 1,583,770 $ 650,506 $ 5,365,896

$ 39,854 $$ 182,475
8,432

10,773

725,000
166,057

47,361
495,000

36,167
1,335,281

32,497

1,279 $

272,225

354

102,205

223,608
8,432

10,773
32,497

997,225
166,057

354

149,566
495,000

36,167
1,335,281

$ $ 72,351 $ 376,063 $ 3,454,960

$ 438,677 $
(313,603)

1,174,198
337,221

478,345 $
(203,902)

2,091,220
(180,284)

$

$ 125,074Total net position

1lcÆRffiP'()tl{@* &@r5.@fl 22

$ 1,511,419 $ 274,443 $ 1,910,936



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

lThe Notes to the Financial Statements are an inteoral oart of this

activities -
Water
Fund Fund

Property
Manaqement Fund

Operating revenues
Water sales
Sewer charges
Fines
Rents
Reimbursements

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Administration
Cost of sales and services
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Property tax
Capital outlay
lnterest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

lncome (loss) before transfers
and contributions

Transfers in

Change in net position

Total net position, January 1,

Total net position, December 3l

Totals

$ $
136,250

2,213
3,550

$ 945,417 $ 138,463 $ 3,550 $ 1,087,430

$ $ $ 167,462
983,462
210,171

$ I,160,156 109 182 $ 91,757 $ 1,361,095

$ (214,739) $ 29,281 $ (88,207) $ (273,665)

$ 476,336 $
(1,680)

(107.665)

7,015 $ $ 483,351
(1,680)

(1 16.5't7)(8.852)

$ 366,991 $ 7,015 $ (8,852) $ 365 154

$ 152,252 $ 36,296 $ (97,059) $ 91,489

$ $ $ 106,300 $ 106,300

$$ 922,649

16,994

5,77;

922,649
136,250

19,207
3,550
5,774

167,128
867,326
125,702

334
42,491
66,357

73,645
18.112

$

$

$

152,252

(27,178)

$ 36,296

s 1,475,123

9,241

265,202

197,789

1,713,147

$

$

$

$

g 125,074 $ 1,511,419 $ 274,443 $ 1,910,936
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Notes to the Financial Statements are an in rt of this stateme

n activities - E funds
Property

Fund Fund Manaqement Fund Totals
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers
Cash payments for goods and services
Cash payments for salaries and benefits

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Purchase of plant, property and equipment

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents, January I

Gash and cash equivalents, December 3l

$ 602,029 $ (65,4741 $ 176¿300 $ 212,8s5

$ 962,708 $
(674,056)

332,093 $
(241,175)

3,550
(72,977)

$ 1,298,351
(988,208)
(333,565)(333 ,565)

$ (44,913) $ 90,918 $

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
lnterfund borrowing $
Transfers from other funds
Property tax receipts

145,000

457,029

$

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Principalpaid on debt $ (544,670) $
lnterest paid on debt (7,SBS)

(69,4271 $ (23,4221

(70,000)

4,526

70,000
106,300

145,000
106,300
461,555

$ $

$ (97,290)
(9,000)

$ (641,e60)
(16,585)
(53,759)(1,680) (52,079)

$ (553,935) $ (52,079) $ (106,290) $ (Zr 2,3041

(26,635)

84,576

$ 5,023 $ 57,941 $

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income $ (2i4,239) $ Zg,Zg,l $

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:

Depreciation expense $ 125,702 $ 66,357 $
(lncrease) decrease in net accounts
receivable (8,993) (5,144)

(lncrease) decrease in inventory 1,020
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 35,626 (1,576)
lncrease (decrease) in accrued salaries
and benefits (1,092)

lncrease (decrease) in compensated
absences e61)

lncrease (decrease) in customer deposits 17,A14

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

$ 169,826 $ 6l,637 $

$ (44,913)

$

$

$

$

$

$

3,181

1,842

583 $ (22,871_)

86,516e8$
681 $ 63,645

(88,207) $ (273,665)

18,112

9,700

$ 210,171

(2,437)
1,020

34,718

(1,082)

(261)

668

(e,700) I 114

18,780 $ 250,243
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
December 3'1,2014

(The Notes to the Financial Statements are an inteqral part of this statement)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments, at fair value:

US Treasury securities
US government agency securities
State and municipal securities
Asset backed securities
Equity mutualfunds
Corporate bonds
Annuities

lnterest receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts / vouchers payable

Total liabilities

Net position
Held in trust for pension benefits

Total net position

Pension
Trust Funds

$ 704,466

201,207
150,910
225,358
139,563
721,592
821,121
572,598

17.438

$ 3,554,253

$ 1.174

s 1,174

$ 3,553,079

$ 3,553,079
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Village of South Chicago Heights, ttlinois

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(The Notes to the Financial Statements are an i ntegral part of this statement)

Additions:
Contributions

Employer
Plan member

Total contributions

lnvestment income
Net appreciation in fair value
of investments
lnterest
Dividends

Total investment income

Less investment expense

Net investment income

Totaladditions

Deductions:
Benefits
Administrative expense

Total deductions

Change in net position

Net position held in trust for pension benefits
January 1

December 3l

Pension
Funds

$ 128,104
32,865

$ 160,969

$ (93,353)
95,409
76,934

$ 78,990

14,261

$ 64,729

$ 225,698

$ 233,157
5,132

$ 238,289

$ (12,591r

$ 3,5ô5 ,670

$
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31.2014

l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois conform to accounting principles
generally acceþted in the United States of America as applicable to local governments. Generally accepted
ãccounting principles for local governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), the American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants in the publication entitled AUdits
of State and Local G,ove,rnmen,tal Units and by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (where applicable).
The following is a summary of the more significant policies.

A. Reporting Entity

The Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois is a municipal corporation, organized with powers and
authorities as established in the lllinois Municipal Code (Chapter 65 of the lllinois Compiled Statutes), is
governed by an elected Village President and six member Board of Trustees and operates under the
Þresident / Trustee form of government. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, these financial statements present the Village of South Chicago Heights and its
component units, entities for which the Village is considered to be financially accountable.

Blended component units: The Village's full-time police and firefighter employees participate in the South
Chicago Heights Police Pension Fund and South Chicago Heights Firefighters' Pension Fund respectively.
The South Chicago Heights Police Pension Fund functions for the benefit of those employees and is
governed by a five member board. Two members are elected by active fund members, one is elected by
beneficiariei and two are appointed by the Village Board of Trustees. The South Chicago Heights
Firefighters' Pension Fund functions for the benefit of those members and is governed by a five. member
board-. Two members are elected by active fund members, one is elected by beneficiaries, and two are
appointed by the Village Board of Trustees. The participants of both Funds are required to contribute a
percentage of salary as established by state statute and the Village is obligated to fund all remaining Fund
costs based upon actuarially determined levels. The State of lllinois is authorized to establish benefit levels
and the Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of contribution
levels. Although they are legally separate from the Village, the Funds are reported as if they were part of the
primary government because their sole purpose is to provide retirement benefits for the Village's sworn police
officers and firefighters. The Funds are reported as pension trust funds.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The Village's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net
position ãnd a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of
financial information. The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Village as an entity and
the change in aggregate financial position resulting from activities of the fiscal period.

Government-wide Financial Sfaúemenús - The statement of net position and the statement of activities
display information about the Village as a whole. ln the government-wide statement of net position, both the
goúerñmental and business-type activities columns are presented on a consolidated basis by column. These
ðtatements include the financial activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary activities. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
busrness-fyp e activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The government-
wide statement of activities reflects both the direct expenses and net cost of each function of the Village's
governmental activities and business-like activity. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
õpecific function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient for the goods or services offered by
the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of
a particular program and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program.
Revenues, which are not classified as program revenues, are presented as general revenues of the Village,
with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the
extent to which each government function or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general

revenues of the Village.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

l. Summary of Slgnificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Gontinued)

Fund Financiat Statemenfs - The financial transactions of the Village are recorded in individual funds. A
fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that comprise its assets /
deferred outflows, liabilities / deferred inflows, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and.fidu-ciary - are
pi.åseirteO. The emphasis of fund financial statements is of major governmental and enterprise funds,.each
äisplayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated -and
preseáteO as nonniajor funds. Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from
äxchange transactioñs associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in

which eãch party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies
and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

Government-wide Financial Sfaúemenfs - The government-wide financial statements and fund financial

statements for proprietary and fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus

and the accruai basis of accounting. The economic resources measurement focus means all assets / deferred

outflows and liabilities / deferred inflows (whether current or non-current) are included on the statements of
net position and the operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net

position. Under the accrual basis of accounts, revenues are recognized when earned, if measurable, and

expenses are recognized as incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The Village has reported three categories of program revenues in the statement of activities (1) charges for

services,l2) program-specific operating grants and contributions, and (3) program-specific capital grants and

contributions. Prógram revenues are derived directly from the program itself or from external sources, such as

the State of lllinois; they reduce the net cost of each function to be financed from the Village's general

revenues. For identifying the function to which a program revenue pertains, the determining factor for charges

for services is which fuñction generates the revenue. For grants and contributions, the determining factor is

the function to which the revenues are restricted.

Eliminations have been made in the statement of net position to remove the "grossing-up" effect on assets

and liabilities within the governmental activities column for amounts reported in the individual funds as

interfund receivables and payables and advances. Similarly, operating transfers between funds have been

eliminated in the statement of activities. Amounts reported in the governmental funds as receivable from or

payable to fiduciary funds have been reclassified in the statement of net position as accounts receivable or
payable to external parties.

Fund Financial Statements - Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are

recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available

wneñ tney are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose the Village considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty (60)

àays of the end of the current fiscal period. Revenues accrued at the end of the year include charges for

services, licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, intergovernmental revenues, investment earnings,
property taxes, sales taxes and income taxes. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and

ävâ¡laOie only when cash is received by the government. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability

is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related

to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Proprietary funds separate all activity into two categories: operating and non-operating revenues and

expenses.- Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing and delivering

goods. Non-operating revenues and expenses entail all other activity not included in operating revenues and

ãxpenses. Non-operãting revenues and expenses include capital and noncapital financing activities and

investing activities.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
leonfinueclì

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

When an expenditure/expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources

are available, it is the Village's policy to apply restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as

needed.

Differences occur from the manner in which the governmental activities and the government-wide financial

statements are prepared due to the inclusion of capital asset and long-term debt activity. Governmentgl fund

financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the

relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

The accounts of the Village are organized on the basis of funds. A fund is an independent.,fiscal .and
accounting entity with a self-balancin-g set of accounts. Fund accounting segrega.tes-funds according to.their
intended õurposê and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliange w'rth finance-related legal and

contractuäl provisions. The minimum num-ber of funds are maintained, consistent with legal and managerial
requirement's. The various funds are grouped in the financial statements in this report into six generic fund

types and three broad fund categories as follows:

Governmental funds are used to account for the Village's general government activities. Governmental fund

types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
ãócounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual 1riínen they are "measurable" and "available"). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction
can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period. The Village considers.taxpayer assessed and sales taxes available when

in ine nanOs of intermediaþ collecting governments and agencies. Expenditures are recorded when the
related fund liability is incurrêd, excepffor unmatured interest on general longLerm debt which is recognized
when due, and certain compensateci absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the

obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Revenues considered to be susceptible to accrual are:

- Real estate tax
- Telecommunications tax
- State sales tax
- State income tax
- Local use tax
- Motor fueltax
- Video gaming tax

- Utility tax
- Personal property replacement tax
- 911 telephone surcharge
- Circuit court and local ordinance fines
- lntergovernmental reimbursements
- Grants
- Charges for services

Governmental funds include the following fund types:

General Fund - is the general operating fund of the Village. lt is used to account for all financial resources
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Fund - is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of, general

long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

Capital Project Fund - is used to account for the financial resources used for the acquisition and construction
of major capital faciities.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (continued)

The Village reports the following major governmental funds:

. General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Village. lt is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

o Non-home Rule Sales Taxes Fund - The Non-home Rule Sales Taxes Fund is used to account for
taxes generated by the referendum approved non-home rule sales tax which are restricted in use for
capital improvements and/or tax relief.

o Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for taxes levied for the retirement of
general obligation bond debt and building purchase installment contract debt.

. Íax lncrement Financing Fund - The Tax lncrement Financing Fund is used to account for the taxes
generated by increases in real property assessed valuation in the Villagqlg two tax increment financing
áreas and aie restricted in use for redevelopment projects and/or activities within the designated tax
increment financing area.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basi-s of acêounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred. Proprietary funds include the following fund type:

Enterprise Funds - are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expense-s, including
deþreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be..financed or
reóovered primaiity througñ user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic

determinatiôn of ievenues earned, eipenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

The Village reports the following major proprietary funds:

o Water Fund - The Water Fund accounts for the operating activities of the Village's water utility service.
. Sewer Fund - The Sewer Fund accounts for the operating activities of the Village's sewer utility

service.
. Property Management Fund - The Property Management Fund accounts for the operating activities of

rental property being held for future development.

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the Village in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of
others. irust funds account for assets held by the Village under the terms of a formal trust agreement.

pension Trust Funds - are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds using the same

measurement focus and basis of accounting.

The Village has pension trust funds for both the Police and Firefighters' Pension Plans.

C. Assets / Deferred Outflows, Liabilities / Deferred lnflows, and Equity

1. Deposits and lnvestments

Unrestricted deposits and investments are pooled into one common interest-earning bank account in

order to maximi2e investment opportunities. Each fund with monies deposited in the pooled accounts has

an equity therein, and interest earned on these monies is allocated based upon relative equity at each

month end.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
(continued)

l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C. Assets / Deferred Outflows, Liabilities / Deferred Inflows, and Equity (continued)

1. Deposits and lnvestments (continued)

Cash equivalents, for the preparation of these financial statements, are considered to be demand
deposits with banks, money markets and negotiable certificates of deposit and marketable securities that
were purchased with a maturity of ninety days or less. lnvestments are stated at fair value. Fair value of
invesiments is determined using quoted market prices, except for insurance contracts which are carried at
contract value, which approximates fair value.

2. Receivables and Payables

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on January 1. They are levied in December (by passage of
a Tàx [evy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the County Clerk and issued on or about February 1

and Augudt 1 and are payable in two installments, on or about March 1 and September 1. Property taxes
receivable are initially recorded at the gross levy less a 3 percent allowance for uncollectible taxes.
Taxes receivable and/or the allowance are adjusted periodically to reflect taxes receivable at their
estimated realizable value.

3. lnventory

lnventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. lnventory is recorded on the basis of
a physióal count. Special reporting treatments are also applied to governmental fund inventories to

¡nd¡cáte that they do not represent "available spendable resources," even though they are a component of
net current assets. Such amounts are generally offset by fund balance reserve accounts.

4. CapitalAssets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.9. roads, bridges

and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with a cost of $5,000 or
more and a useful life of more than one year. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. lmprovements are

depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation of all assets is
provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings
lmprovements
lnfrastructure - roads
Water & sewer system
Vehicles
Equipment

20-50
20-40
20

30-50
3-1 0
5-1 0

Years
Years
Years
Years
Years
Years

lnfrastructure assets include roads, sidewalks, traffic signals, etc. The retroactive reporting of
infrastructure is optional for the Village and it has not elected to do so, therefore infrastructure assets
acquired prior to May 1 , 2004 are not reported in the basic financial statements. The reported
infrastructure assets only include those acquired subsequent to April 30, 2004.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
(continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C. Assets / Deferred Outflows, Liabilities / Deferred Inflows, and Equity (continued)

4. Capital Assets (continued)

Property, plant and equipment in the proprietary funds are recorded at cost. Donated property,-plant and
equipmênt are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Major outlays for capital
assets and improvements are capitalized in proprietary funds as projects are constructed.

5. Prepaid ltems

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of this report are
recorded as prepaid items.

6. Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid compensated absences are reflected in the financial statements in accordance with
GASB Codification Section C60 and in the government-wide financial statements. Accumulated unpaid
compensated absences are accrued when incurred in proprietary funds (using the accrual basis of
accounting). A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. The General Fund is typically used to
liquidate these liabilities.

It is the Village's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay

benefits. The Village considers the entire amount to be a long-term obligation and thus has recorded
liabilities in the Government wide statements and Water and Sewer Fund statements.

7. lnterfund Receivable, Payables and Activity

lnterfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues
and expenditures / expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated ãs transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

B. Long-term Obligations

The Village reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the government wide
statementê. Certain other governmental fund obligations not expected to be financed with current
available resources are also reported in the government wide statement. Long-term debt and other
obligations financed by proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the appropriate fund.

For governmental fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized
during the current period. Bond proceeds are reported as an other financing source net of the applicable
premium or discount. lssuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are reported
äs debt service expenditures. For proprietary fund types, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net
of the applicable bond premium or discount. lssuance costs are expensed at the time of debt issuance.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
leonfinuedl

l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C. Assets / Deferred Outflows, Liabilities / Deferred lnflows, and Equity (continued)

9. Fund Equity

Restrictions of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a
specific purpose. Restrictions of equity are limited to outside third-party restrictions. Commitments and
assignments of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. ln the
fund-financial statements, governmental funds report restrictions of fund balance for amounts that are not
available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.

Net position represent the difference between assets / deferred outflows and liabilities / deferred inflows.
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition construction or improvements of those
assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the Village or through external restrictions imposed by

creditors, grantors, laws, or regulations of other governments.

10. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

ll. Stewardship, Gompliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetarylnformation

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for most
funds. The Village follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

The Village Administrator submits to the Board of Trustees a proposed appropriation ordinance for the fiscal
year commencing the following January 1. The appropriation ordinance includes proposed expenditures and
ihe means of finãncing them. Appropriation hearings are conducted. The appropriation is legally enacted
through the passage of an ordinance. The appropriation ordinance may be amended by the vote of four
members of the Board of Trustees. For consistency purposes, all financial statements utilize the term
"Budget" to indicate estimated revenues or appropriations.

Actual expenditures for any object may not legally exceed the total approprialed for that objgc! Management
does not. have the authórity to alter appropriations without approval of the Board of Trustees. The
appropriation ordinance was amended this year. The level of control (level at which the governing body must
aþþrove expenditures in excess of appropriations, or transfer appropriated amounts) is the fund.
Appropriations lapse at year end.

B. Deficit Fund Equity

At December 31,2014 the following fund had a deficit in fund equity:

Capital Project Fund $9,600
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
leonfinuedl

ll. Stewardship, Gompliance, and Accountability (continued)

C. Fund Balance Classifications

The following is a schedule of fund balance classifications for the governmental funds as of the date of this
report:

Non-home Tax

Rules Sales Debt lncrement Nonmajor

General Taxes Service Financing Funds Total

Fund balances
Nonspendable

lnventories / prepaids

Restricted
Capital projects/tax relief
Economic development
Highways & streets
Debt service reserves

Unassigned

$ 6,611 $ $ $ 19,158 $ 25,769$

2,039,468
390,859

7,8'15

604,454

Total fund balance $ 611,065 $ 2,039,468 _$_1,81 5_ _$_3eq,pæ_ _q_1_0,0p9_ $ 3,059,2s7

Fund balances in the Non-home Rule Sales Taxes and the E-911 Services Funds are restricted by the State
statutes that authorized these special revenues. Fund balance in the Debt Service Fund is restricted by local
bond ordinances. Fund balance in the Tax lncrement Financing Fund is restricted by enabling State
legislation and local ordinances that created the TIF area. Fund balances in the Motor Fuel Tax and CDBG
funOs (Nonmajor) are restricted by enabling State legislation and grant agreements. ln the governmental
funds fihancial-státements, the Villãge first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities, then
committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance, as applicable.

lll. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Deposits and lnvestments

The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund typ.e's
portion oi tfr¡s pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "cash and cash equivalents" and/or
;'investments". 'lllinois 

statutes authorize the Village to make deposits/invest in insured commercial banks,
savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, insured credit union shares,
money market mutual funds with portfolios of securities issued or guarantegd by the United States or
agreeinents to repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreements, short term commercial paper
ra.=ted within the three highest classifications by at least two rating services, and the lllinois Funds_(public-
treasurer's investment pool). Pension funds may also invest in certain non-U.S. obligations of the State of
lllinois and its political subdivisions, and lllinois insurance company generaland separate accounts.

At December 31,2014 the Village's cash, cash equivalents and investments consisted of the following:

(e,e86)

2,039,468
390,859

878
7,815

594,468

878

Deposits at carrying amount
Cash on hand

lnvestments at fair value

$ 3,123,867
951

3,425,701
Total $ 6,550,519
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

lll. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

A. Deposits and lnvestments (continued)

These amounts are presented in the financial statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments at fair value:

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments at fair value:
US Treasury securities
US government agency securities
State and municipal securities
Asset backed securities
Corporate bonds
Equity mutual funds
Annuities

$ 2,420,352
593,352

704,466

201,207
150,910
225,358
139,563
821,121
721,592
572,598

@-
lnvestments - As of December 31,2014, the Village and the Pension Trust Funds had the following
investment maturities in debt securities:

I nvestnrent rnaturities
Fair

ralue
0to6
rnonths

6 months
to I vear

1to5
years

6to10
years

More than
10 years

$ 1,345,669 $

75,000

Total pri rnary gorernrnent $ 1,939,021 $ 1,420,669 $

Primary governrnent
lllinois Funds*
Corporate obligations
State of lllinois obligations

Pension Trust Funds
lllinois Funds*
Corporate obligations
State of lllinois obligations
GNMA obligations
FHLMC obligations
FNIvIA obligaüons
US Treasury notes

$ 1,345,669
98,952

494,400

$ $ $
98,952

419,400

$518,352 $- $

$ 47,381
821,121
225,358
79,939

150,910
59,624

203,710
124,6æ

150,910

2U,730

79,939

59,624

g 47,381 $ -
281,431 101,2s0
100,694

$ $ $

201 207 2O1,207 _______,_

Total pension trust funds $1,585,540 $ 429,506 $ 101,250 $ 328.374 s352,117 9374,293

* - The lllinois Funds lnvestment Pool is not registered with the SEC. The Pool is administered by the
lllinois State Treasurer and oversight is provided by the Auditor General's office of the State of lllinois. The
fair value of the positions in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares. Because the Pool had a
weighted average maturity of less than 6 months at December 31, 2014 it has been presented as an
investment with a maturity of less than 6 months.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
(continuedl

lll. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

A. Deposits and lnvestments (continued)

Custodial credit risk - For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Village will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are
in the possession of an outside party. The Village had no custodial credit risk for its investments at December
31, 2014. The Pension Trust Funds limit the exposure to custodial credit risk by utilizing an independent, third
party institution, selected by the pension boards, to act as a custodian for the securities.

lnterest rate risk - lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. The Village and the Pension Trust Funds minimize the risk by structuring the investment
portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the
need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity, and investing operating funds primarily in short-
term securities or similar investment pools. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising
from rising interest rates, the Village investment policy limits at least half of the Village's investment portfolio
to maturities of less than one year.

Credit and concentration of credit risk - For an investment, credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other
counterparty to an investment in debt securities will not fulfill its obligation. The Village and the Pension Trust
Funds limit the exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in securities issued by agencies of the United
States Government that are implicitly guaranteed by the United States Government. The lllinois Funds are
"AAAm" rated funds and credit risk is very marginal. Concentration risk is defined as positions of 5% or
greater in the securities of a single issuer. The investment policies of the Village and Pension Trust Funds do
not include any limitations on how much U.S. Treasury and Agency securities can be held in the portfolio. At
December 31, 2014, 1.7o/o, 4.3o/o, 2.3o/o and 6.40/o of the Pension Trust Funds' investment portfolios consisted
of investments in the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC), the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) and the State of lllinois
respectively. The FNMA and GNMA ¿¡s I'A,AA'' rated and credit risk is marginal; the State of lllinois is rated
A- and credit risk is low.

The Fund's investment policy in accordance with lllinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) establishes the following
target allocation across asset classes:

Asset Class Tarqet

Long-Term
Expected Real

Rate of Return

Fixed lncome
Domestic Equities
I nternational Equ ities
Real Estate
Blended
Cash and Cash Equivalents

53%
20o/o

10%
5%

10o/o

0o/o

1.3o/o

5.4%
5.5%
4.5%
3.5o/o

0.0o/o

lllinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) limit the Fund's investments in equities, mutual funds and variable annuities
to 45%. Securities in any one company should not exceed 5% of the total fund. The blended asset class is
comprised of all other asset classes to allow for rebalancing the portfolio.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued'l

lll. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

A. Deposits and lnvestments (continued)

The long{erm expected rate of return on the Fund's investments was determined using an asset allocation
study conducted by the Fund's investment management consultant in Decembe r 2014 in which best-estimate
ranges of expected future real rates of return (net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) were
developed for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the longterm expectéd rate
of,return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the targét asset allocatio-n percentäge and by
adding the expected inflation. Best estimates or arithmetic real rateJof return for each major ajset class
included in the Fund's target asset allocation as of December 31,2014 are listed in the table aóove.

Rate of Return

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments,
net-of pension plan-investment expense, was 1.88%. The monèy-weighted rate of return exprässes investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amiounts actually investeó.

B. Receivables

Governmental funds receivables as of year-end, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts,
are as follows:

General
Fund

Non-home
Rule Sales
Tax Fund

Tax lncrement
Financing

Fund

Non-major
Governmental

Funds Total
Receivables:

Property taxes
Other taxes
lntergovernmental
Accounts
Fines
Grants
lnterest
Other

Gross receivables
Less: allowance
for uncollectible

$ 1,812,273 $
33,616

369,1 76
167,688
102,902

2,819
11,477
14,460

$ 321,222 $ $ 2,133,495
33,616

499,425
168,286
102,902
162,819

11,477
14,460

119,826 10,423
598

160,000

1 19,826 321,222 171 ,021 3,126,480

171,397

Net total receivables $ 2,343,014 $ 119,826 $ 321,222 $ 171 ,021 $2 ,955,083

2,514,411

171,397
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

lll. Detaited Notes on All Funds (continued)

C. lnterfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

lnterfund receivable and payable balances at year end were as follows:

Receivable Fund
General Fund
NHRST Fund
Sewer Fund
NHRST FuNd

Transfers for the fiscal year were as follows

Pavinq Fund

Payable Fund
Capital Project Fund
Water Fund
Water Fund
Property Management Fund

NHRST Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Motor FuelTax Fund
General Fund
TIF Fund

Purpose
Short-term cash loan
Short-term cash loan
Short-term cash loan
Short-term cash loan

Purpose
Fund current operations
Fund current operations
Source of funds - long-term notes
Source of funds - long-term notes
Source of funds - engineering
Source of funds - long-term notes

Amount
$ 9,600
$425,000
$300,000
9272,225

Receivinq Fund
General Fund
E-911 Fund
Debt Service Fund
Debt Service Fund
CDBG FuNd
Property Management Fund

Amount
$ 50,000
$190,450
$ 49,910
$124,915
$ 20,685
$106,300

D. CapitalAssets

A summary of changes in governmental capital assets follows:

Balance at
January 1,2014 Additions

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land $ 513,274 $

Subtotal 513,274

Capital assets being dePreciated

Balance at
Deletions December 31 2014

$ $ 513 274
513,274

Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
lnfrastructure

Subtotal

Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being

depreciated, net
Governmental Activities

capital assets, net

219,116
2,703,284
2,219,912

42,304
65,112 31,948

219,116
2,745,588
2,253,076
1,711,4591,433,653 277 806

6,575,965 385,222 31,948 6,929,239

4,220,782

2,35 5,183 127,841

$ 2,868,457 s 127,841 $

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation

$

257.381 31,948 4.446.215

2 483,024

$ 2,996,298

41,637
98,306
86,711
30,727
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

lll. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

D. Capital Assets (continued)

A summary of changes in business-type capital assets follows:

Balance at
January 1,2014 Additions

Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land $ 291,500 $

Subtotal 291.500

Balance at
Deletions December 31 2014

$ $ 291,500

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings $ $ $ $

291 500

711,258
2,573,929
2,134,198
2,449,302

104 986

Water system
Water tower
Sewer system
Vehicles & equipment

Subtotal

711,258
2,573,929
2,134j98
2,357,443

104,986
91,859

9l 859 7,973,673

Accumulated depreciation
Business-type Activities

capitalassets, net

3,947,768 210,171 4,157,939

g 4,225,546 _s (1 18,312)_ $ $ 4,107,234

On January 19,2011 the Village entered into an intergovernmental agreement with Bloom Township High

School O¡sirict #209 lor the supply of water to Bloom Trail High School. This project included installation of
5,200 feet of water main from the Village's water pumping station and the installation of a booster pump and

controls. District #209 agreed to incur the initial cost of the project with the intent to donate the installed
assets to the Village, at which point the Village will maintain as a segment of its water supply system

thereafter. At December 31, 2014lhe project was complete and operational, however ownership had not

been yet transferred. Total estimated cost of the project is $950,000.

E. Long-TermLiabilities

1. General Obligation Bonds

On November 1, 1998 the Village issued $1,347,702 of Series 19988 General Obligation Bonds for the
purpose of advance refunding a portion of the Series 1994 General Obligation Bonds and for improvements
to the Village's water supply system. The bonds are payable on November I of each year from 2014 to
2018 to provide for a compounded accreted value at maturity using yields from 4.50 percent to 4.75
percent.

2. Notes Payable

ln 2001 the Village executed a note in the amount of $500,000 for the purpose of refunding advances from
the governmental funds to the Water Fund. Quarterly principal and interest payments are $12,830 are due
June 30, September 30, December 31 and March 31 through September 30, 2016. The interest rate is 6
percent. Water revenues are pledged to repay this note, which is a general obligation of the Village.

7,881,814
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

lll. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

E. Long-Term Liabilities (contlnued)

2. Notes Payable (continued)

ln 2004 the Village executed a five year note in the amount of $250,000 for the purpose of financing the
purchase of a new fire truck with a balloon payment due on February 25,2009. The repayment schedule
for this note was based upon a 20 year amortization at an interest rate of 4.5 percent and the Village's
intent is to refinance the remaining balance over the 20 year expected front-line life of the truck. A new note

was executed on July 7, 2OOg under the same terms with a final balloon payment due on June 25, 2014.
The note was subsequently extended on July 7,2014 under the same terms with semi-annual principal and

interest payments due on June 25 and December 25 each year and a final balloon payment due on June
25,2019. This note is a general obligation of the Village.

ln 2004 the Village executed a note in the amount of $250,000 for the purpose of financing a street
improvement project with a balloon payment due on October 1, 2009. The repayment schedule for this note

was based upon a 15 year amortization at an interest rate of 4.75 percent and the Village's intent is to
refinance the remaining balance over the 15 year expected life of the street. A new note was executed on

July 7, 2009 under the same terms in order to refinance the balloon payment. Final payment of this note

was made on October 1, 2014. State motor fuel tax revenue was pledged as the source of funds to repay

the note, which is a general obligation of the Village.

ln 2010 the Village gxecuted a note in the amount of $460,000 for the purpose purchasing land within the
Tax lncrement Financing area. This land parcel has been identified and designated as the location of a
future commuter rail station along the proposed METRA Southeast Service Line. Principal and interest
payments of $8,857 are due on the 15'n of each month through December,2015. The interest rate is 5.75
percent. TIF revenues are pledged to repay this note, which is a general obligation of the Village.

3. Changes in General Long-term Liabilities

For governmental activities, debt service payments for all general obligation bonds, installment contracts
and ñotes payable are made by the Debt Service Fund; payments on the net pension obligation and long-

term compensated absences are made by the General Fund. For business{ype activities, all payments for
long-term liabilities are made by the Water Fund. For the year ended December 31,2014, changes in long-
term debt principalwas as follows:

Governmental Activities

2004 fire truck purchase note

2004 street improvement note

Capital lease payable

Net pension obligation, as restated

Net 0PEB obligation

Compensated absences

Balance

1t1t2014 lssuances Retirements

Balance

12t31t2014

Amounts

Due Within

One Year

$ 157,337 $

1'19,385

31,327

23,000

747,600

$ 19,563 $

119,385

20,727

137,774 $ 12,825

14,711

255,899

4,889

10,600

37,711

1,003,499

7,868

B4 587 29,70679 698

$ 275,499Total, as restated $ 1,158,347
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
(continued)

lll. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

E. Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

3. Changes in General Long{erm Liabilities (continued)

Business.$pe Activities
Balance

1t1t2014 lssuances Retirements

Balance

12t31t2014

Amounts

Due Within

One Year

Series 19988 G.0. Bonds

2001 water system improvement note

2010 TIF land purchase note

Capital lease payable

Compensated absences

Total

s 2,214,712

128,149

199,494

15,048

11,034

$ 100,569 $ 485,000

44,621

97,289
15,049

261

$ 1,830,281

83,528

102,205

$ 495,000

47,361

102,205

10,773 4,153

$ 2,568,437 $ 100,569 $ 642,219 g 2,026,787 $ 648,719

4. Debt Service to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for one series of general obligation bonds, and four
installment notes payable, are as follows:

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Year Ending
December 31

Notes
Payable

Notes

G.O. bonds Payable Total
2015
2016
2017

2018
2019

Total

Less interest
portion

Outstanding
principal

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

18,995

18,995

18,995
18,995

84,582

495,000
505,000
515,000
525,000

156,755

36,1ô7
$ 670,750

$ 560,162

$ 533,995

$ 543,995

$ 84,582

$

$

1ô0,562 $ 2,040,000 $192,922 $ 2,393,484

22,788 $ 209,719 $ 7,1 89 $ 239,696

g 137,774 $ 1,830,281 $ 185,733 $ 2,153,788

F. Capital Lease Obligation

The Village is liable under one capital lease at December 31,2014. The liability represents the present
value of the balance due in future years for the leased vehicle discounted at a rate ol6.15o/o. The liability is
payable in equalmonthly installmentsof $692 including interest, through May 16,2016.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinuedl

lll. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

F. Gapital Lease Obligation (continued)

The future minimum payments required under the lease, together with the present value as of December
30,2014 follows:

Gowrnmental
activities Total

2015
2016

Total minimum lease payrnents

Less amount representing interest

Present vralue of minimum lease payments

$ 8,301
2,767

8,301
2,767

$

11,068

468

$ 10,600 $ 10,600

The cost of the vehicle acquired under the capital leases was $22,804. Amortization expense for the year
ended December 31,2014 was $7,400 and accumulated amortization on the vehicles at December 31,2014
was $12,204.

G. Long-term deferred revenue

ln 2014 the Village approved an amendment to its existing ground lease with American Tower Asset Sub, LLC

to grant a long-term extension to the term in exchange for a modification of rent payments. Under the amended
agreement American Tower paid a lump sum rent of $800,000 for a fifty year extension of the lease term
through2076. Forfiscal year2014theVillagerecognizedaportionofthisreceiptascurrentyearrevenueand
classified the remainder as long-term deferred revenue. A portion of this deferred amount will be recognized as
current year revenue each year during the term of the lease agreement.

lV. Other lnformation

A. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans

The Village contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the lllinois Municþal RetirementFund (IMRF), a
defined bênefit agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system; the Police Pension Fund which is a
single-employer þension plan; and, the Firefighters' Pension Fund, which is also a single-employer pension
ptañ. tne eolice Pension Plan and Firefighters' Pension Plan and may be obtained by writing to_ the Village at
3317 Chicago Road, South Chicago Heights, lllinois 60412. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report
that includeõ financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not by
individual employer. That report may be obtained online at www.imrf.orq. The benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions, arid employer contributions are governed by lllinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) and can only be
amended by the lllinois General Assembly.

11,068

468
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
(continued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

A. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans (continued)

1. Plan Descriptions, Provisions and Funding Policies

lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund

All employees (other than those covered by the Police and Firefighters' Pension plan-s)ìired in positions

that meet or eiceed the prescribed annuäl hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF as participating

members. IMRF provides two tiers of pension benef¡ts. Participating members hired before January 1,2011
(Tier 1) who retiie at or after age 60'(full benefits) or age 55 (reduced benefits) with I years of credited

èervice are entitled to an annuà retirement benefit, payáOte monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-213

percentof theirfinal rate (average of the highest4S co¡-secutive months'earnings during the.last 10 years)

õf earnings, for each yeai of créOiteO servlce up to_]5.years, and 2 percent for e-ach year thereafter. For
participati'ng members hired on or after January'1, 2011-(Tier 2) who retire at or after age 67 (full benefits)

ã¡ágd 62 (ieduced benefits) with 10 years of 
-cre!þO 

sèrvice are entitled to an annual retirement benefit,
payãnte mònthly for life in án amouni equal to-1-213 percent of their final rate (ave-rage of the highest 96

bonsecutive months'earnings during the'last 10 years) of earnings, for each year of credited service_up to

15 years, and 2 percent for-each yõar thereafter. IMRF also provides.death and disability benefits. These

oeriet¡t piovisiond and all other reqúirements are established by state statute.. Employees_participating in the
plan arb required to contribute 4.SO percent of their annuâl covered salary.to lM.RF. The employees'

äontribution iate is estabtished by staté statute. The Village is required to contribute the remaining amount
necessary to fund the IMRF plañ as specified by statute. The employer contribution and annual required

contributiön rate for calendar year 2014 was 17.99 percent of covered payroll.

Police Pension Plan

ptan Administration. The police Pension Plan is a single-employerdefined benefit pension plan thatcovers
all sworn police personnel. The defined benefits and employee and minimum employer contribution levels

are governed by lllinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/3-1) and may !e amended only by the lllinois

legijlature. tne Viltage accounts for the Fund as a pension trust fund. The Fund is governed by a five-

mémber pension boarO. Two members of the Board are appointed by the Village President, one member is

elected by pension beneficiaries and two members are elected by active police employees.

At fiscal year end the Police Pension Fund membership consisted of:

Reti rees and benef iciaries c u rrently receivi ng

benefits and terminated employees entitled

to benefits but not yet receiving them

Terminated plan rnembers entitled to, but not
yet receiving benefits

Current employees
Vested
Nonvested

5

1

5
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
(continued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

A. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans (continued)

Police Pension Plan (continued)

Benefits Provided. The following is a summary of the Police Pension Plan as provided for in lllinois State

Statutes.

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits through two tiers of benefits as well as death and

disability benefits. Covered employees hired before January 1,2011 (Tier 1), attaining the age of 50 or

older with 20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit o1% of
the salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last day,

whichever is greater. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5 percent of such salary for each additional
year of service over 20 years up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75 percent of such salary. Employees with at
ieast eight years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a
reduced benefit. The monthly benefit of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years of service after
January 1,1977 shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid

upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3 percent of the original pension and 3 percent compounded

annually thereafter. Covered employees hired on or after January 1, 2011 (Tier 2), attaining the age of 55 or

older with 10 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to

the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total salary of the police officer during the 96

consecutivè months of service within the last 120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest

by the number of months of service in that period. Police officer salary for the pension purposes is capped

ai $IOO,80O, plus the lesser of % of the annual change in the Consumer Price lndex or 3 percent

compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5 percent of such a salary for each additional year

of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75 percent of such salary. Employees with at least

10 years may retire at or after age 50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., % percent for each month under

SS): The montnty benefit of a Tiãr 2 police officer shall be increased annually at age 60 on the January 1"
after the police office retires, or the first anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is later.

Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3

percent of T, of the change in the Consumer Price lndex for the proceeding calendar year.

Contributions. Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police Pension

Plan. lf an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee
contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the

remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan and the administrative costs as actuarially determined by an

enrolled actuary. However, effective January 1,2011, ILCS requires the Village to contribute a minimum
amount annually calculated using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method that will result in the funding

of 90% of the past service cost by the year 2040. For the year-ended December 31 , 2014, the Village's

contribution was 36.01% of covered payroll.
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

A. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans (continued)

1. Plan Descriptions, Provisions and Funding Policies (continued)

Firefighters' Pension Plan
PIan Ãdministration. The Firefighters' Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that
covers all sworn firefighter personnel. The defined benefits and employee and minimum employer
contribution levels are governed by lllinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 514-1) and may be amended only by

the lllinois legislature. The Village accounts for the Fund as a pension trust fund. The Fund is governed by a

five-member pension board. Two members of the Board are appointed by the Village President, one
member is elected by pension beneficiaries and two members are elected by active fire employees.

At fiscal year end the Firefighters' Pension Fund membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving

benefits and terminated employees entitled

to benefits but not yet receiving them 1

Current employees
Vested

Nonvested

Benefits Provided. The following is a summary of the Firefighters' Pension Plan as provided for in lllinois
State Statutes.

The Firefighters' Pension Plan provides retirement benefits through two tiers of benefits as well as death
and disability benefits. Covered employees hired before January 1,2011 (Tier 1), attaining the age of 50 or
older with 20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of % of
the salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last day,

whichever is greater. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5 percent of such salary for each additional
year of service over 20 years up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75 percent of such salary. Employees with at
least eight years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a

reduced benefit. The monthly benefit of a firefighter who retired with 20 or more years of service after
January 1,1977 shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid

upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3 percent of the original pension and 3percent compounded
annually thereafter. Covered employees hired on or after January 1,2011 (Tier 2), attaining the age of 55 or
older with l0 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to

the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total salary of the firefighter during the 96 consecutive
months of service within the last 120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the
number of months of service in that period. Firefighters' salary for the pension purposes is capped at

$106,800, plus the lesser of T. of the annual change in the Consumer Price lndex or 3 percent

compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5 percent of such a salary for each additional year

of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75 percent of such salary. Employees with at least
10 years may retire at or after age 50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., lz percent for each month under
55):The moñtnty benefit of a Tie-r 2 firefighter shall be increased annually at age 60 on the January 1't after
the police office retires, or the first anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is later.

Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3
percent of % of the change in the Consumer Price lndex for the proceeding calendar year.

1
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

A. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans (continued)
Firefighters' Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions. Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455o/o of their base salary to the Firefighters'
Pension Plan. lf an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated
employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute
the remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan and the administrative costs as actuarially determined
by an enrolled actuary. However, effective January 1,2011, ILCS requires the Village to contribute a minimum
amount annually calculated using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method that will result in the funding
of 90% of the past service cost by the year 2040. For the year-ended December 31 , 2014, the Village's
contribution was not available.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Employee and employer contributions are recognized as revenues when due, pursuant to formal
commitments, as well as statutory or contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value lnvestments - lnvestments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are
reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the last
reported sales price. lnvestments that do not have any established market, if any, are reported at estimated
fair value.

Significant lnvestments - There are no investments (other than U.S. Government and U.S. Government -
guaranteed obligations) in any one organization that represent 5 percent or more of net position available for
benefits for either the Police or Firefighters' Pension Fund. lnformation for IMRF is not available.

Related Party Transactions - There are no securities of the employer or any other related parties included in

plan assets.
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
(continued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

A. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed, as of December 31 ,2014,
using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Police

Pension

Firefighters'

Pension

Actuarial Valuation Date

ActuarialCost Method

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions

lnterest Rate

12t31t2014

Entry Age

Normal

Market

7.00o/o

12t31t2014

Entry Age

Normal

Market

7.00o/o

Salary lncreases 5.50% 5.50%

Cost of Living Adjustments 3.00% 3.00%

lnflation 3.00% 3.00%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Mortality Table. The actuarial assumptions used in the December
31, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study conducted by the lllinois
Department of lnsurance dated September 26,2012.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%, the same as the prior valuation.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be
made at the current contribution rate and that Village contributions will be made at rates equal to the
difference between the actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those
assumptions, the Fund's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all project future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

A. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters (continued)

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitive analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The table
below presents the pension liabilities calculated using the discount rate as well as what the net pension
liabilities would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one
percentage point higher than the current rate:

Current

Discount Rate

Police Pension

1% Decrease
(6.00%) (7 00%)

1% lncrease
(8.00%)

Net Pension Liability $ 2,654,798 1,986,788

Current

Discount Rate

1,426,013

1% lncrease
(8.00%Firefighters' Pension

1% Decrease
(6.00%) (7 00%)

Net Pension Liability $ 237,234 216,829 198,844

Net Pension Liability

The components of the net pension liability of the Village's Plans as of December 31 ,2014, calculated in

accordance with GASB Statement No. 67, were as follows:

Police

Pension

Firefighters'

Pension Totals

Total Pension Liabiltiy

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Village's Net Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of the total Pension Liability

$ 5,492,486
3,505,698

264,210
47,381

5,756,696

3,553,079

1,986,788 216,829 2,203,617

63.83% 17.93o/o 61.72o/o
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Vitlage of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
(continued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

A. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans (continued)

3. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

IMRF Total

$ 136,432 $ 133,619 $ 8,636 $ 278,687

366 1,530 (262) 1,6U

Police
Pension Fund

Firefighters
Pension Fund

Annual Required Contribution

lnterest on Net Pension Obligation

AnnualPension Cost

Actual Contribution

lncrease to the NPO

NPO - Beginning of Year

NPO - End of Year

The Village's ann
follows:

Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (981)

136,537 134,168 8,*2 279,247

136,432 117 183 10 921 2æ 536

105 16,985

21,863

(2,379) 14,711

877 (3.740\ 23,oqo

$ 4,982 $ 38,848 $ (6,11e) $ 37,711

ual required contribution for the current year and related information for each plan is as

(261) 168 0741

lllinois Municipal
Retirement Fund

Police
Pension Fund

Firef ghters'
Pension Fund

Contribution Rates
Employer
Employee

Annual Required Contribution

Contributions Made

Actuarial Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions
ln\,estment Rate of Return

Projected Salary lncreases

lnflation Rate lncluded

17.99o/o

4.sOVo

$136,432

$136,432

12t31t2014

Entry Age
Normal

Lewl %of
Projected Payroll

Open Basis

30 Years

5-Year
Smoothed Market

7.5Oo/o

Compounded
Annually

.4 to 1O.Oo/o

4.OOo/o

36.O1Yo
9.91o/o

$1 34,1 68

$117,183

12t3112014

Entry Age
Normal

Ler¡el o/oof

Projected Payroll
Closed Basis

26 Years

Market

7.OO%

Compounded
Annually

5.5Oo/o

9.455o/o

$8,701

$10,921

1213112014

Entry Age
Normal

Lewl %of
Projected Payroll

Closed Basis

26 Years

Market

7.OOo/o

Compounded
Annually

5.5Oo/o
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

A. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans (continued)

4. Trend lnformation

Employer annual pension cost (APC), actual contributions and the net pension obligation (NPO) are as

follows. The NPO is the cumulative difference between the APC and the contributions actually made.

Year
lll¡no¡s Municipal
Retirement Fund

Police
Pension Fund

Firefighters'
Pension Fund

Annual Pension Cost
(APC)

Actual Contributions

Percentage of APC
Contributed

Net Pension Obligation

12t3112012
12t31t20'13
12t31t2014

't2t31t2012
12t31t2013
12t3112014

12t3112012
12t3112013
1213112014

12t31t2012
12t3'v2013
't2t3112014

116,536
132,992
136,537

116,436
132,890
136,432

10a,o23
10a,115
't34J6,A

96,a10
9a,436

117,'18,3

7,102
7,O95
8,542

9,689
9,884

10,921

136.43o/o
139.31o/o
127.85o/o

(e51)
(3,740)
(6,119)

99.91o/o
99.92o/o
99.92o/o

4,775
4,477
4,98.2

A9.620/0
91 .O5o/o

87.71o/o

12,1æ
21,8'6,3
3A,848

5. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The Village's funded status for the current year and related information for each plan is as follows

lllinois Municipal
Retirernent Fund

Police
Pension Fund

Firefighters'
Pension Fund

Actuarial Valuation Date

Percent Funded

Accuarial Accrued LiabilitY
for Benefits

Actuarial Value of Assets

Or¡er (Under) Funded Actuarial
Accrued Liability (UAAL)

Corered Payroll (Annual PaYroll
of Actiræ Employees Cotæred
by the Plan)

Ratio of UAAL to Cotæred
Payroll

(1,276,110) $(1,986,788) $ (216,82e)

$ 758,378 $ 325¡27 $

-168.27o/o

12t3112014

61.97o/o

12t3'v2014

63.80%

$ 5,492,486

$ 3,505,698

12t31t2014

17.9OVo

$ 264,210

$ 47,381

3,355,915

2,O79,805

$

$

$

50
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

A. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans (continued)

5. Funded Status and Funding Progress (continued)

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary lnformation (RSl) following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

B. Other Post Employment Benefits

1. Plan Description, Provisions and Funding Policy

ln addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Village provides postemployment healthcare
insurance benefits (OPEB) for its eligible retired employees through a single employer defined benefit plan.

The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer contributions are governed by the Village
and can be amended by the Village through its personnel manual and collective bargaining agreements.
The plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, and an irrevocable trust has not been established to account
for the plan. The plan does not issue a separate report. The activity of the plan is reported in the Village's
General Fund.

The Village provides post-employment healthcare benefits to its retirees. To be eligible for benefits an
employee must have been hired prior to September 18, 2006 and qualify for retirement under one of the
Village's retirement plans.

All healthcare benefits are provided through the Village's health insurance plan. The benefit levels are the
same as those afforded to active employees. Benefits include general inpatient and outpatient medical
services, dental care and prescriptions. Upon a retiree reaching 65 years of age, Medicare becomes the
primary insurer and the Village's plan becomes secondary.

Upon separation from Village service, unless removed for cause, after completing a minimum of 15 years of
active service for the Village, some or all of the related cost of health insurance premiums will be paid by
the Village in accordance with the following schedule:

For the fiscal year ending December 31,2014, retirees contributed 92,622. Active employees do not
contribute to the plan in anticipation of future participation in the Village's retiree healthcare insurånce
benefit at retirement. Contributions to the plan begin only at retirement.

At December 31,2014 membership consisted of:

Years of active pervice
15
1B
20

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits

Terminated plan members entitled to
bu not receiving benefits

Active vested plan members
Active nonvested plan members
Total

Premiums paid by Íhe Village
50%
75o/o

100o/o

8

t9
6

51
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
lcontinued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

B. Other Post Employment Benefits (continued)

1. Plan Description, Provisions and Funding Policy (continued)

The Village does not currently have a funding policy.

2. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligations

The Village first had an actuarial valuation performed for the plan as of April 30, 2010 to determine the

funded stãtus of the plan as of that date as well as the employer's annual required contribution (ARC) for
the fiscal year ended April 30, 2010. The current valuation covers the subsequent 20 month period.

The net OPEB obligation (NOPEBO) as of December 31 ,2014 was calculated as follows:

Annual Required Contributions $ 330,581

lnterest on Net OPEB Obligation 29,904

Adjustnrent to Annual Required Contribution (24,920)

Annual OPEB Cost 335,565

Actual Contribution 79.666

lncrease to the Net OPEB Obligation 255,899

Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 747.600

Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year $ 1,003,499

3. Trend lnformation
Percentage of

Annual OPEB Cost
Contributed

FiscalYear
Ending OPEB Cost

Annual

't2t3112012

12t3112013

12t31t20"14

$ 265,849

$ 263,813

$ 33s,565

19.9%

28.7%

23.7Vo

Net OPEB
Obligation

$ 559,422

$ 747,600

$ 1,003,499

4. Funded Status and Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial
Accrued
Liabilitv

Annual
Covered
Payroll

Ratio of Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued
Liability to Annual
Covered Pavroll

Total Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued

Liability

12t3112012
12t31t2013
12t3112014

$ 3,374,049
$ 4,669,750
$ 4,669,750

3,374,O49
4,669,750
4,669,750

Funded
Ratio

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

$ 1,031 ,606
$ I ,010,089
$1,034,571

327.07%
462.31o/o

451.37o/o

$
$
$

$
$
$
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
(continued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

B. Other Post Employment Benefits (continued)

4. Funded Status and Funding Progress (continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions

about the probability of occurrenðe of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future

employment, mortálity and the healthcare cost contributions of the employer are subject to continual

revision as actual reiults are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the

future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the

notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial

value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for

benefits.

5. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as

undirstood by the employer and plan members) and includes the types of benefits provided at the time of

each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan

members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed

to reduce short-térm volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with

the long-term perspective of the calculations.

ln the December 31 , 2014 actuarial valuation the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial

assumptions included a 4.Oo/o investment rate of return, including a 3.0o/o inflation assumption and an initial

healthcare cost trend rate of 8.0%, with an ultimate rate of 6.0%. The actuarial value of assets was not

determined as the Village has not advance funded its obligation. The plan's unfunded actuarial accrued

liability is being amortizêd as a level percentage of pay on an open basis. The remaining amortization

period at December 31 ,2014 was 30 years.

C. Commitments

At Decembe r 31, 2014, the Village had an outstanding purchase commitment of $25,417 for road salt.

ln 2013 the Village signed a participation agreement with the lllinois Department of Transportation for a project

to resurface apiroxiriately 0.7b miles of Jackson Ave. Under this agreement the Village is committed to

contributing a2öW share óf the cost of this State project. Total project cost is estimated at $370,445 with the

Village's sñare not to exceed $74,090; Motor Fuel Tax is the planned source for the Village's contribution. The

pro¡ãct was compteted in 2014 but at December 31 ,2014 the lllinois Treasurer had not yet billed the Village for

its final share of the project cost.

D. Risk Management

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;

errors anã omissions; injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Commercial insurance is purchased for all

coverage except workers'compensation, as noted below. The Village retains the risk on the first $1,000 Ioss

per occ-urrence, and also for losses above the policy's $8,000,000 coverage limit. At fiscal year end, the Village

äetermined there were no probable unpaid claims for which it retained risk, and as such did not record a claims

liability.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2014
(continued)

lV. Other lnformation (continued)

lllinois Public Risk Fund (IPRF)

The Village participates in the lllinois Public Risk Fund (IPRF) to provide for the defense and payment of

workers' iompensation claims. The Fund is a not-for-profit corporation organized and operating as an

intergovernmental joint insurance pool within the meaning of the Workers' Compensation Act. The Fund's

memlbership consists of over 500 lllinois municipal units. Membership in the Fund is limited to public entities.

The minimum initial term of membership is one year and membership may not be terminated by the member
prior to the last day of the initial year. A member may withdraw its membership in subsequent years upon

giving 90 days notice.

ln the event of depletion of all reserves and reduction of members' equity below zero, pro rata assessments of
participating mem'bers may be made to cover deficits that may occur. ln the event of termination of IML-RMA

by its members, after payment of all claims and expenses, the remaining assets are to be distributed pro rata

among the members.

The Village's payments to IPRF are displayed on the financial statements as expenditures/expenses in

appropriate funds.

E. SignificantContingencies

The Village was a party to several pending lawsuits at DelÌmber 31,2014. After consultation with legal

counsel a-nd applicaÌion'ot the criteria'set out in NCGA-4 and SFAS-5, the Village has determined that none of
these lawsuitd'meets both the "probable" and "measurable" standards, and as such an estimated loss

contingency amount for this judgment has been recorded as an expenditure in the current year.

F. Prior Period Adiustment

Beginning net position of the Governmental Activities has been restated to correct an overstatement of the

Village's Ñet pension Obligation. The previous amount was unsupported by current actuarial valuation reports.

The-net effect is a $563,888 decrease in non-current liabilities and corresponding increase in net position in the
govern ment-wide statements only.

G. Significant Subsequent Events

On March 5, 2015 the Village issued General Obligation bonds in the amount of $2,500,000 for the purpose of

financing the construction oi a new public safety facility on a parcel of land currently owned by the Village. The

interest iates of the bonds range from 2.Oo/o to 4.5% with a maturity date of December 1,2034.

On March 24, 2015 the Village entered into a master equipment loan-purchase agreement for the purpose of

financing a meter replacement and technology upgrade project for its water utility system. The to-tal amount

financed-is $1,985,1d8 payable in annualrent payments through March 24,2028. The interest rate of the loan is

3.093%.

On August 5,2015 the Village assigned the leasehold rights and a fifty year easement for a cellular telephone

locatioñ affixed to the Village's Jackson Ave water tower. The total consideration paid to the Village for this

agreement was $302,000.
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative), Origin,al Final

Revenues
Local Taxes

Property Tax - Corporate Levy

Property Tax - Audit Levy
Properg Tax - Crossing Guards Levy
Property Tax - Fire Pension Levy
Property Tax - Fire Protection Levy

Property Tax - Garbage Levy

Property Tax - IMRF Levy
Property Tax - Liability lnsurance Levy
Property Tax - Police Pension Levy
Property Tax - Police Protection Levy
Property Tax - Social Security Levy

Property Tax - Street & Bridge Levy
Property Tax - Road & Bridge Levy
Utility Tax - Electric
Utility Tax - Natural Gas
911 Local Telephone Surcharge
Foreign Fire lnsurance Tax
Other Local Taxes

Total Local Taxes

State Shared Taxes
State Sales Tax
Telecommunications Tax
State lncome Tax
State Use Tax
Personal Property Replacement Tax
Video Gaming Tax
Other State Shared Taxes

Total Stàte Shared Taxes

$ r,768,905 $ r,768,905 g 1,766,876 $

$ $ $

$$ 278,900
23,470
4,695

10,325
248,850

4,695
103,335
187,900
107,960
352,250

63,775
19,000

300,000
60,000

3,750

278,900
23,470
4,695

10,325
248,850

4,695
103,335
187,900
107,960
352,250

63,775
19,000

300,000
60,000

3,750

248,563
22,404

4,664
11,720

266,075
3,331

117,694
148,257
121,656
346,662

(30,337)
(1,066)

(31)
1,395

17,225
(1,364)
14,359

(3e,643)
13,696
(5,588)

(6,577)
(216)

14,049
21,015

1,054

$ $

57, I 98
18,784

314,049
81 ,015

4,804

810,000
125,000
420,000

67,000
22,650
15,000

810,000
125,000
420,000

67,000
22,650
15,000

888,862
94,021

396,284
79,483
22,770
40,187

78,862
(30,e7e)
(23,716)
12,483

120
25,187

$

$ 1,459,650 $ 1,459,650 $ 1,521,607 $ 61.957

Licenses and Permits
License - Adult uses $
License - Ambulance
License - Amusement pks & shooting gallet

L¡cense - Amusements, dances, skating
License - Auctioneers & liquidation sales
L¡cense - Auto body shops
License - Auto courts & mobile home pks

License - Auto parts dealers
L¡cense - Auto repair & tire repair shops
License - Auto sales, new & used
License - Barber & beauty shops
License - Billiards tables
License - Bowling alleys
License - Business, general

License - Carnivals & circuses

900
1,275
1,500
5,000
4,500
3,000

300

900
1,275
1,400
6,1 50
3,700
2,300

500

$ $ $

900
275
500
000
500
000
300

1,

1,

5,
4,
3,

(100)
1,150
(800)
(700)
200

cont¡nued.

35,000
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
and Actual

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended April 30, 2006)

Budgeted Amounts
Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Neqative)

Revenues (continued)
Licenses and Permits (continued)

License - Cigarette & tobacco dealer $
License - Coin op amusement & game rms

License - Coin operated vending
License - Contractors
License - Delivery trucks & truckers
License - Dry cleaning & laundries
License - Exhibitions & menageries
L¡cense - Food cold storage & wholesalers

License - Food dealers
License - Food delivery vehicles
License - Garages & parking lots

License - Gasoline storage
License - Handbill distributor
License - Hotels
License - lce cream & milk dealers
License - Junk dealers & scavengers
L¡cense - Kennels, pet shops & groomers

License - Machine Plants
License - Massage parlors & therapists

. License - Medical disPensaries
License - Nursing homes
License - Outdoor advertisers
License - Paint shops
License - Pawnbrokers & 2nd hand dealers

License - Peddlers, flea mkt & itinerent dlrs

License - Plumbing & heating suppliers
License - Raffles
License - Restaurants
License - Service stations
License - Tattoo & bodY Piercing
License - Taxicabs
License - Undertakers
License - Other Businesses
License - Alcoholic Liquor Class A
License - Alcoholic Liquor Class B
License - Alcoholic Liquor Class C

License - Alcoholic Liquor Class D

License - Alcoholic Liquor Class E1 & E2

License - Alcoholic Liquor Class F1 & F2

License - Alcoholic Liquor Class G

License - Alcoholic Liquor Class H

License - Alcoholic Liquor Class T

License - Alcoholic Liquor Class J

Vehicle License - Passenger Car
Vehicle License - Senior / Handicapped

Vehicle License - Military/School/Religious
Vehicle License - Truck
Vehicle License - Bus / RV

continued...

900
1,875
3,750

19,500
50

900
1,875
3,750

19,500
50

7,100
200

325

2,200

4,400
1,250

350

7,100
200

800
1,575
4,125

21,389

6,250

2,200

(100)
(300)
375

1,889
(50)

(850)
(200)

(200)

(1 00)
(200)

300
(650)

295

(750)

700

(e00)

$ $ $

100
1,000

100
1,000

150
1,250

325

2,200

4,400
1,250

350

4,500
750

3,000

1,000
1,400

4,700
600

(r:)

50
250

250

000
500
300

600

I
1

(75)
(700)

(36)

500
,200

50

1,000
1,700

300
100
800

1,000
1,700

300
100
800

645

4,500
750

3,000

3,750
750

3,700

1,000
1,400

100
1,400

500
1,275

750
100
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended April 30, 2006)

Budgeted Amounts
Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)o

Revenues (continued)
Licenses and Permits (continued)

Vehicle License - Motorcycle $
Vehicle License - Taxi
Vehicle License - Duplicate/Replacement
L¡cense - Domestic Animal
License - Other
Permit Fee - Plan Review
Permit Fee - Residential Remodeling
Permit Fee - Residential New Construction
Permit Fee - Comm/lndstrl Remodeling
Permit Fee - Comm/lndstrl New Constructiot
Permit Fee - Garage New Construction
Permit Fee - Demolition
Permit Fee - Sign
Permit Fee - Plumbing
Permit Fee - Electrical
Rental Unit lnspection Fee

Public Hearing Fee

Permit Violation / Reinspection Fee

Permit Fee - Building Moving
Certificate of Compliance Fee

Permit Fee - Excavation
Permit Fee - Fireworks Display
Permit Fee - Municipal Property Usage
Certificate of Occupancy Fee

Permit Fee - Solicitor
Permit Fee - Street Opening
Permit Fee - Trailer Parking
Franchise Fee - Cable TV
Permit Fee - Other

Total Licenses and Permits

Charges for Services
Alarm Fee $
Ambulance & EMS Fee

Animal lmpound Fee

Board-up / Violation Remediation Charge
Delinquent Bill Lein Release Charge
Escrow Processing Fee

Fire Protection Services Fee

FOIA / Copying Charge
Garbage Bag / Recycling Bin Fee

lnspection Fee

License Application Fee

Police / Fire Report Fee

$$$

175

500
20,000

20,000

500
1,000

250
200

27,500

100

12,000
50

36,000
1,000

$ 230.925

125,000

5,500
100

175

500
20,000

20,000

500
1,000

250
200

27,500

100

12,000
50

5,500
100

6,352
23,875

24,278

536
257
100
240

21,935

300

18,175

5,852
3,875

4,278

36
(743)
(150)

40
(5,565)

200

150 (25)

6,175
(50)

36,000

$ 230,925 $ 242.751 $ 11,826

$
125,000 7,800

I
35,327

200
(673)
1800)

$$

255,000
2525

255,000

132,800

8,444
86

2,944
(14)

(25)
16,781

375
(200)

(64)

,000
300
500

,000
300
500

continued. 57

271,781
1,375

100
436



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comoarative totals for the fiscal vear ended April 30, 2006)

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Nesative)

Revenues (continued)
Charges for Services (continued)

Property Damage Charge
50/50 Sidewalk Replacement Sales

Other Charges For Services
Program Fees - Other Recreation

Total Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures
Building Code Violation Fines
Circuit Court DUI Fines
Circuit Court Fines
"C" Ticket Fines
Deposit Forfeits
Escrow Frofeits
False Alarm Fines
General Ordinance Violation Fines

Late Payment Penalty
Liquor Code Violation Fines

NSF Check Charge
"P" T¡cket Fines

Police Forfeiture lncome
Garbage Service Turn-on Fee
Vehicle lmmobilization Fine
Zoning Violation Fee
Other Fines and Forfeitures

Total Fines and Forfeitures

Rent
Building Rentals

Antenna Site Lease
Senior Center Rentals
Pavilion Rentals
Other Rentals

Total Rent

Grants
Federal Grants
State Grants
County Grants
Township Grants
Corporate / Private Grants
Other Grants

Total Grants

$ $
500

1,400
500

500
1,400

500

2,642
(500)

(1,200)
439

$ 2,642 $

200
939

$ 389,825 $ 389,825

$ $
100

10,000
75,000

100
10,000
75,000

53,000
5,250

53,000
5,250

300 300

4r 8.803 $ 28,978$

$ $

25,000
150

25,000
150

1,569
20,730
80,458

45,050
5,924

125
1,475

27,359

1,469
10,730
5,458

(7,e50)
674

(1 75)
1,475
2,359

(150)

$ 168,800 $ 168,800 $ 192É90 $ 13.890

$ s 45,225
36,850

5,000
1,500

200

$ 88.775 $ 88,775

$
15,750 15,750

45,225
36,850

5,000
1,500

200

51,228
53,300
2,525

550
250

$ $ 6,003
16,450
(2,475)

(e50)
50

$ 107.853 $ 19,078

$$ $
31,786

2,625

9,572

16,036
2,625

3,500
2,000

500
000

3
2

6,072
(2.000)

g 21,250

continued... 58

$ 21.250 $ 43,983 $ 22.733



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended Aoril30. 2006)

Budqeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive

Original Final (Neqative)

Revenues (continued)
lnterest

Interest From DePosits

lnterest From lnvestments
lncrease in Fair Value of lnvestments

Other lnterest

Total lnterest

Reimbursements
Gasoline Tax Reimbursement
Developer Reimbursement
Expense Reimbursement
lnsurance Reimbursement
I ntergovernmental Reimbursement
State Reimbursement
Workers Compensation Reimbursement

Other Reimbursements

Total Reimbursements

Other Revenue
Donations
Donations - Firefighters Association

Commissions
Merchandise Sales
Special Event Fund Raising
Cash Over / Short
Miscellaneous

Total Other Revenue

Total revenues

$ 600
10,000

600
10,000

286 $
30,345

(22,s30)

(314)
20,345

(22,e30)

$ $

$ 10,ô00 $ 10.600

1,500 $ 1,563 $

7 701 $ (2,899)

63$ 1,500 $

750
1,500

750
1,500

4,107
20,402

1,958
6,810

3,357
18,902

1,958
6,810

762762

$ 3.750 3 750 $ 35,602 $ 31,852

100
3,000

$ 4,605

500 1,025

$

$$$

$$

100
3,000

500

705
000

4
3

1,525

$
100 100 192 92

$ 3,700

$4, 146,180

$ 3,700

$ 4,146,180

$ 9,422 g 5,722

$ 4,337,288 $ 191 ,1 08

continued..
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final

Expenditures
General government

Nondepartmental
Personal Services

Benefits
lnsurance - GrouP Life and AD&D
lnsurance - Group Medical
lnsurance - GrouP Dental

Total Benefits

Total Personal Services

Contingency
Contingencies
Property Damage
Claims & Judgements

Total Contingency

Total Nondepartmental

Mayor and Village Board
Personal Services

Compensation
Salary - Elected and Appointed Officials

Total Compensation

Personal Services
Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare
Employer IMRF

lnsurance - Group Life and AD&D
lnsurance - Group Medical
lnsurance - Group Dental
lnsurance - Workers ComPensation
lnsurance - Unemployment

Total Benefits

Total Personal Services

Contractual Services
Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Communications EquiPment
R&M-Vehicles

Total Repair and Maintenance

continued...

$ 63,521 $ 65,066 $ 63,085 $ 1,981

$ 63,521 $ 65,066 $ 63,085 $ 1,981

$ 82,500 $ 52,245 $ g 52,245

$ 82,500 $ 52,245 $ $ 52,245

$ 146,021 $ 117,311 $ 63,085 $ 54,226

$ 80.740 $ 73,530 $ 54,800 $ 18,730

$ 18,730

4,611
10,537
3,828

45,649
6,490
4,118
1 014

$ 4,611
10,537
3,828

45,649
6,490
4,793

339

$ 4,192
9,803
3,797

40,404
6,100
4,792

$ 419
734

31
5,245

390
1

339

$ 76,247 $ 76.247 $ 7.159

$ $ $ $
60,366

3,1 55
61,911

3,155
60,120

2,965
1,791

190

$ 80 .740 $ 73,530 $ 54,800

$

$ 156,987 $ 149.777

$ 69,088

$ 123,888 $ 25,889

$ $ $ $
825 825 419 406

825 $ 825

au@Fhlr@\s()@t@uFM12tfr 1{cf8 ffi 
^sd 

31Mls ca il

$

60

$ 419 $ 406



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

lWith comoarative totals for the fiscal vear end ed Aoril 30. 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Nesative)Final

Expenditures (continued)
General government (continued)

Mayor and Village Board (continued)
Other Contractual
Advertising & Legal Publishing
Bank Fees & Charges
Facili$ Rental

lntergovernmental Fees and Dues
Printing and Copying Services
Professional Assn Memberships & Dues
Purchased Program Services
Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager
Training Services
Other Contractual

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services
Commodities

Awards
Computer Supplies
Concessions and Food

Fuel

Office Supplies
Postage
Program Supplies
Stationery
Other Materials and Supplies

Total Commodities

Travel
Conference and Meeting Registration
Local Mileage, Parking and Tolls
Lodging

Meals

Total Travel

Total Mayor and Village Board

Board of Police & Fire Commissioners
Personal Services

Compensation
Stipend - Boards and Commissions

Total Compensation

Total Personal Services

continued...

3,850
1,650
1,320

275

3,850
1,650
1,320

275

Original

275

$$$$

275 111

3,372
130
943

164

478
1,520

377
275

$ 7,370 7,370 $ 4,556 $ 2,814$

$ 8,195 $ 8.195 $ 4,975 $ 3,220

$220$

1,980
1,540

220
75

4,170
1,540

300
435
275
220

47
74

4,166
1,252

300
435
239

71

5.925

$ $ 73
1

4
288

275
220

36
149

3,850 5 925

$ 8,085 $ 1 3.1 60 $ 12,509 $ 651

$ $ $ $1,100
550

1,375
1,100

2,650
660

1,405

2,650
658

1,401
2
4

82

$

$

100 1 018

4,125 $ 5.815 $ 5,727 $ 88

177,392 $ 176.947S147.099$29,848

550 S 25$ $ 25

550 $ 25$ $ 25

550 $

$

$

$

61

25$ $ 25



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comoarative totals for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
O,riginal Final

Expenditures (continued)
General government (continued)

Total Professional Services

Board of Police & Fire Commissioners (continued)
Contractual Services

Professional Services
Legal - Review $
Medical

1,100
1,100

100
100

$$ $ 100
100

$ 2,200 $ 200 s $ 200

Other Contractual
Professional Assn Memberships & Dues $
Purchased Program Services
Training Services

$ $ 375
2,770

125

$ 4,270 ï 4,270

$ 2,200 $ 4,470 $

375
2,770
1,125

$

Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Books and Publications
Postage

Total Commodities

Travel
Conference and Meeting Registration
Local Mileage, Parking and Tolls
Lodging

Meals

Total Travel

Health Officer
Contractual Services

Other Contractual
Printing and Copying Services
Purchased Program Services
Rodent / Mosquito Abatement

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Other Materials and Supplies

Total Commodities

TotalHealth Offlcer

continued...

$ $

4.270 $ 200

$340$ $ 340 $

$ $ 340 $ 340 $

$ $ $ $
175
575
100

174
571

98

i
4
2

$ 850 $ 843 $ 7

Total Bd of Police & Fire Commissioners $ 2,750 $ 5,685 $ 5.453 $ 232

$ $ $ $

22,OO0 22,000 19 755 2,245

$ 22,000 $ 22,000 s 19,755 $ 2,245

$ 22.000 $ 22,000 s 19,755 $ 2,245

$ $

$-
$

$ $ $

22.000

ol@Fb@lscrylsuMr2r4wr¡cÆRffi 
^sd 
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$ 22,000 $ 19,755 $ 2,245



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended APril 30, 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive

nal Final (N

Expenditures (continued)
General government (continued)

Zoning Board of APPeals
Personal Services

Compensation
Stipend - Boards and Commissions

Total Compensation

Total Personal Services

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Engineering and Architectural
Legal - Review

Total Professional Services

Other Contractual
Advertising & Legal Publishing

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Office SupPlies

Postage

Total Commodities

Travel
Meals

TotalTravel

Total Zoning Board of APPeals

General & Financial Administration
Personal Services

Compensation
Wages - Full Time Salaried

Wages - Full Time HourlY

Wages - Part Time HourlY

Wages - Seasonal HourlY

Wages - Overtime
Auto Allowance

Total ComPensation

continued...

715 $ 15 $

$ 715 $ 15 s $ 15

$ 715 $ 15 $ $ l5

$ $ 15

$ 550
550

$50
3,425

$ $ 50
3

100 $I

3,422

3.475 $ 3,422 $ 53

$ $275 75$ 34$ 41

s 275

s I 375

$

$ 75$ 34$ 41

$ 3,550 $ 3,456 $

$

94

55
55

$55
55

$55
55

110 $ 110 $ 110$

$ $ $ $

s $ $ $

$ 2,200 $ 3,675 $ 3,456 $

197,341
58,454
20,789

$ 197,341
58,454
5,289

$ 188,682
56,559

2,302

$

85

$

219

8,659
1,895
2,987

5 280 4 800 480
280365365

5.280

$

63

g 266,729 I 252,428 $ 14'301



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)Original Final

Expenditures (continued)
General government (continued)

General & Financial Administration (continued)
Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare $
Employer IMRF
lnsurance - Group Life and AD&D
lnsurance - Group Medical
lnsurance - Group Dental
lnsurance - Workers Compensation

21,555
48,829

1,203
40,130

3,146
22,540

958

2,107
6,261

663
3,597

189
888
958

21,555
48,829

1,203
40,130

3,146
22,540

958

$ $ 19,448
42,568

540
36,533
2,957

21,652

$

lnsurance - Unemployment Compen sation

Total Benefits

Total Personal Services

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Audit
Consulting
Data Processing
lnvestment Management
Legal - Review
Other Professional Services

Total Professional Services

Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Communications Equipment
R & M - Data Processing Equipment
R&M-OfficeEquipment
R&M-Vehicles

$ 138.361 $ 138,361 $ 123,698 $ 14,663

$ 420,590 $ 405,090 $ 376,126 $ 28.964

g 26,400 $

22,OOO

24,400
3,650

35,710
2,865

24,000
3,645

35,708
2,865

1,800

$ $ 400
5
2

1,790

$ 50,160

1,800

$ 68.425 $ 68,018 $ 407

$ $ $ $2,475
1,650
5,830
1,650

1,725
950

4,530
1,550

1,700
900

4,478

25
50
52
I54 1

Total Repair and Maintenance $ 11,605

Other Contractual
Advertising & Legal Publishing
Archival & Document Services
Bank Fees & Charges
Contract Labor
Equipment Rental

lntergovernmental Fees and Dues
lntergovernmental Service Contracts
ISP's & Data Services
Liability lnsurance
Ordinance Codification Services

8 755 $

$ 1,342 $ 1,342 $

4,950 4,950
15,500
7,400
1,965
1,860
1,800

101,750
50

9,350
5,225

10,560
1,100

101 ,750
3,300

4,461
15,485
7,391

131
1 ,813
1,793

99,345

8,619 $ 136

927 $ 415

489
15
I

1,834
47

7

2,405
50

continued 64



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended April 30, 2006)

Original
Budoeted Amounts Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)Final

Expenditures (continued)
General government (continued)

General & Financial Administration (continued)
Other Contractual (continued)
Printing and Copying Services $
Professional Assn Memberships & Dues

Purchased Program Services
Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager

Training Services
Other Contractual

2,750
6,408

550
10,725

220

3,275
3,808
3,625

10,725
220

$ 2
27

2
556
220

$ 3,273
3,781
3,623

10,169

$

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Awards
Books and Publications
Computer Supplies
Concessions and Food

Copier Supplies
Fuel

Office Supplies
Postage
Program Supplies
Service & Repair Parts
Stationery
Uniforms
Other Materials and Supplies

Total Commodities

Travel
Conference and Meeting Registration
Local Mileage, Parking and Tolls
Lodging

Meals
Purchased Transportation

Total Travel

Legal Services
Contractual Services

Professional Services
Legal - Prosecution & Adjudication

Legal - Litigation

continued.

$ 219,995 $ 235.450

$1 58 230 $ 158,270 $ 1q2,1e2

$ 228,829

$ 6,078

$ 6.621

$ $ $ $
'f 10

2,750

1,870
2,200
4,125
2,475
3,300

825
550

110
1,750

185
1,870
1,200
4,600
2,500
3,925

125
550

54
1,414

184
1,374
I ,189
4,600
2,500
3,918

83
418

56
336

1

496
11

7

42
132

$ 18.205 $ 16,815 $ 15.734 $ 1,081

$ $ $ $1,100
1,320
1,155

385

1,100
1,370
1,105

385

975
1,369

577
171

125
1

528
214

$ 3,960 $ 3.960 $ 3,092 $ 868

Total General & FinancialAdministration $ 662,750 $ 661 .315 $ 623,781 $ 37,534

$ 13,200
2,200

13,200
2,200

4J33
2,200

oRdrhç@lsc@l{dwM121¡wl¿CÆR@^Sâ mls clA 65

$ $ 9,067 $



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(with totals for the fiscal vear ended Aoril 30. 2006)

Budqeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive

Original Final (Nes ative)

Expenditures (continued)
General government (continued)

Legal Services (continued
Legal - Review
Other Professional Services

Total Professional Services

Total Contractual Services

Total Legal Services

Building Maintenance
Personal Services

Compensation
Wages - Part Time HourlY

Wages - Overtime

Total Compensation

$ 127,600
5,500

$ 73,587
8,719

$ 124,375
8.725

$ 50,788
rl

$ 148.500 $ 148,500 $ 91,373 $ 57,127

$ 148,500

$ 148,500

$ 148,500

$ 118,500

$ 91.373 $ 57,127

$ 91,373 $ 57.127

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare
lnsurance - Workers ComPensation

lnsurance - UnemPloYment Com

Total Benefits

Total Personal Services

Building Maintenance
Contractual Services

Professional Services
Engineering and Architectural

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

s $ $ $

"1

$ $ $ $

Total Professional Services

Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Buildings & Grounds
R & M - Communications EquiPment

R & M - Fire & EMS Equipment
R&M-OfficeEquipment
R&M-OtherEquipment

Other Contractual
Equipment Rental

Forestry & Landscaping Services

lntergovernmental Fees and Dues

Janitorial

$ $ $ $

$ $19,800
275

48,900
25

I

50550

30
25
20

$ 48,891 $

50

Total Repair and Maintenance $ 20,625 $ 48,975 $ 48,891 $ 84

550
275
580

66

I,

$

continued..
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125
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170
100
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$



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscalvear ended April 30, 2006)

Variance with
Final Budget

PositiveBudgetedSmounts
Orioinal Final

Actual
Amounts

$ szz
1,260

Expenditures (continued)
General government (continued)

Building Maintenance (continued
Purchased Program Services
Rodent / Mosquito Abatement

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Cleaning & Maintenance SuPPlies

Office Supplies
Program Supplies
Service & Repair Parts

Small Tools
Utilities - Village Buildings

Utilities - Public WaY

Total Commodities

Total Building Maintenance

Courtesy Car Program
Personal Services

Compensation
Wages - Part Time HourlY

Wages - Paid-on-call DutY

Total Compensation

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare
Employer IMRF

lnsurance - Workers ComPensation

$

E 11,825 10 $ 10.617

$ 32.450 S 59.675 $ 59,508 $

$ 7,700 $ 10,275 g 10,267 $

880
I 540

980
1.265

$ $ 3
5

$83
167

3,300
550
110

16,500

1,172
13

1,175
25
10

20,825

3
12

10
620,819

$ 28,160 $ 32.310

$ 60.610 $ 91,985

$ 32,271

$ 91,779

$ 39

$ 206

$ 19,457 S 17,432 $ 17,176 $ 256

$ 19,457 $ 17.432 $ 17,176 $ 256

$ 1,488 $ 1,488 $ 1,314

1,502

174$

1,557
372

1,557
372

55
372lnsurance - Unemployment ComPe nsation

Total Benefits

Total Personal Services

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Medical
Other Professional Services

Total Professional Services

continued..

$

$ 22.874

$

3.417 $ 2,816 $3.417 $ 601

$

20 849 $ 19,992 $ 857

$ $

$

ondFkwturyl¡swRÚl211wr¡cÆRÑ^sd @r5 trM

$
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2Q14

mparative totals for the fiscal vear ended Aoril30. 2006)(With co

B Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)nal

Expenditures (continued)
General government (continued)

Courtesy Car Program (continued)

Contractual Services (continued)
Repair and Maintenance
R&M-Vehicles
R&M-OtherEquiPment

$ 1,650
55

$ 3,325 $ 3,321 $ 4
5555

Total Repair and Maintenance

Other Contractual
Equipment Rental

lntergovernmental Fees and Dues

Purchased Program Services
Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Fuel

Program SuPPlies

Service & RePair Parts

Total Commodities

Travel
Local Mileage, Parking and Tolls

Program SupPlies

Total Travel

Total Courtesy Car Program

Total general government

Public safety
Building & Code Enforcement Department

Personal Services
Compensation
Wages - Full Time Salaried

Wages - Full Time HourlY

Wages - Part Time HourlY

Wages - Overtime
Other ComPensation

Total Compensat¡on

continued...

705

$
110 110

605 605

3.321 S 59
1 $380

$ $ $
110

419 186

$ 715 $ 715 S 419 S 296

$ 2.420 $ 4,095 $ 3.740 s 355

$ 3,080 $ 3,430 $ 3,424 $ :

$ 3,080 $ 3,430 $ 3,424 $

$

6

$ $ $

$ $ $ s

$ 28.374 $ 28,374 27 156 1 18

$ 1,250,597

$ 72,052
26,1 38

471

$1 792 $ 1,072,937 $ 182,855

$ $ $72,917
24,463

616

72,914
24,448

613

3
5

3

1

98.661 $

oRøFGtl¡tÑ(ry'¡@ffi12181¡cÆR@^s(u @15 ef e

$
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended Aoril 30. 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
FinalBudget

Positive
(Nesative)

Expenditures (continued) ----!¡g¡L
Public safety (continued)

Building & Code Enforcement Department (continued)
Contractual Services (continued)

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare $ 7,541

Employer IMRF 13,951

lnsurance - Group Life and AD&D 562
lnsurance - Group Medical 10,919
lnsurance - Group Dental 2,695
lnsurance - Workers Compensation 6,384
lnsurance - Unemployment Compensation__---992-

Final

$$$ 7,681
14,201

312
10,069
2,545
8,569

7

7,679
14,201

266
10,066
2,534
8,566

2

46
3

11

3
7

Total Benefits

Total Personal Services

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Data Processing
Engineering and Architectural
Legal - Review

Total Professional Services

Repair and Maintenance
R&M-Vehicles

Total Repair and Maintenance

Other Contractual
Billing & Collection Services
Contract Labor
lntergovernmental Fees and Dues
I ntergovernmental Service Contracts
ISP's & Data Services
Printing and Copying Services
Professional Assn Memberships & Dues
Purchased Program Services
Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager
Training Services

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Books and Publications
Computer Supplies
Concessions and Food

continued...

$ 42,659 $ 43,384 $ 43.312 $72

$ 141,320 $ 141,380 $ 141,287 $ 93

$ $ $ $
8,800

365
5,550
4,720

362
5,506

3
44
43 .300 4 716

$ 12,100 $ 10,635 $ 10.584 $51

$ 270 $ 244 $ 26

$ 270 $ 244 $ 26

$ $3,300
14,850
2,200

1,800
19,800

250

69
14
10

25

2;
4
1

100

$ 1,731
19,786

240

$

2,200
330
275

11,000
660

600
420
150

23,760
410
100

575
420
125

23,756
409

100

$ 35,915 $ 47.290 $ 47,042 $ 248

$ 48,785 $ 58,195 $ 57,870 $ 325

1,265
275

oEdFkS.dtu@|1#WMrr2r¡wr.c FRffi ¡SlH ./M15 csu

$

69

$ 370
1,065

25

$ 368
891

$ 2
174
25



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended April 30. 2006)

nal Final
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
FinalBudget

Positive
(Nesative)

Expenditures (continued)
Public safety (continued)

Building & Code Enforcement Department (continued)
Commodities (continued)

Copier Supplies $ $
Fuel

Office Supplies
Postage
Program Supplies
Protective Clothing & Equipment
Small Tools
Stationery
Uniforms
Training Supplies
Uniforms
Other Materials and Supplies

Police Department
Personal Services

Compensation
Wages - Full Time Salaried
Wages - Full Time Hourly
Wages - Part Time Hourly
Wages - Seasonal Hourly
Wages - Overtime

Total Compensation

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare
Employer IMRF
Employer Police / Fire Pension
lnsurance - Group Life and AD&D
lnsurance - Group Medical
lnsurance - Group Dental

continued...

1,100
220

1,210
275
110
275

1,230
45

710
50

310
25

;
23
71

22
o

25

10

$
1,226

22
639

28
301

$

110 10

Total Commodities $ 4.840 $ 3,840 $ 3,475 $

Travel
Conference and Meeting Registration
Local Mileage, Parking and Tolls
Lodging

Meals
Purchased Transportation

$ $ $ $

Total Travel $ $ $ $

Total Building & Code Enforcement Dept $ 194,945 $ 203,415 S 202,632 $

365

783

$ $ $ $178,437
356,718
329,833

178,437
333,683
352,733

135
96,371

167,946
294,056
352,720

132
91,674

10,491
39,627

13
3

4,69796,371

$ 961,359 $ 961,359 $ e06,528 $ 54,831

42,551
10,699

118,756
3,611

173,446
11,980

43,152
9,932

117,183
1,472

101 ,036
11,261

4
767

1,573
2,139

72,410
719

owÊcvr.@\sd()@l¡swMr2r¡w 11dR!ffik

$

70

$ 43,1 56
10,699

118,756
3,611

173,446
11,980

$ $



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

parative totals for the fiscal vea r ended April 30, 2006)(With com

Budqeted Amounts Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive

nal nts

Expenditures (continued)
Public safety (continued)

Police Department (continued)
Personal Services (continued)

Benefìts (continued)

lnsurance - Workers Compensation $ 76'909

lnsurance - Unemployment Compensation------2.995-

Total Benefits $ 445'537

Total Personal Services $ 1,406,896

$ 79,264
4.625

$ 79,263 $

445 537 $ 363,299

$ 1,269,827

4 625

$ 82,238

s 137 069$1

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Data Processing
Engineering and Architectural

Medical

Total Professional Services

Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Buildings & Grounds

R & M - Communications EquiPment

R & M - Data Processing EquiPment

R&M-PoliceEquiPment
R&M-OfficeEquiPment
R&M-Vehicles

Other Contractual
Bank Fees & Charges
Billing & Gollection Services
Equipment lnstallation Services

Equipment Rental
Facility Rental

lntergovernmental Fees and Dues

I ntergovernmental Service Contracts

ISP's & Data Services

Janitorial
Printing and CoPYing Services

Professional Assn Memberships & Dues

Purchased Program Services

Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager

Training Services
Other Contractual

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

continued...
asdrbçøWcl@l@WM121ffi !.cÆR@ASd @15 çSu

$ 5,500

550

s 6 050

8,800
2,200
2,310

$ 5,500

550

- .rt

$ 2,661 $ 2,839

156 394

$ 2,817 s 3233

$ 220
2,750

275
275

1,980
23,650

s 220
3,250

275
385

2,565
22,455

$

3,249

385
2,562

21 989

29 150 $ 28,185 $

$
11,825
2,200
2,310

11,825
206

2,024

389
560
804

7,200
3,475

220
1

275

3
466

$$

Total Repair and Maintenance $ 29'150 $ 965

$$

1,994
286

3,850
550
825

5,500
2,200
1,045
8,250

13,200
12,100

3,850
560
825

7,200
3,475
1,045
8,250

13,200
6,090

5,210
11,841
1,762

3,461

21

1,045
3,040
1,359
4,328

$ 60 830 s 60 830 $ 45,296 $ 15,534

$ 96,030

71

$ 96 030 s 76298 S 9732



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended April 30, 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final

Expenditures (continued)
Public safety (continued)

Police Department (continued)
Commodities

Ammunition and Range SuPPlies

Books and Publications
Cleaning & Maintenance SuPPlies

Computer Supplies
Concessions and Food

Copier Supplies
Fuel

Lubricants and Fluids
Office Supplies
Police Supplies
Postage
Program Supplies
Protective Clothing & EquiPment

Service & Repair Parts
Small Tools
Stationery
Training Supplies
Uniforms
Other Materials and SuPPlies

Total Commodities

Travel
Conference and Meeting Registration
Local Mileage, Parking and Tolls
Lodging

Meals
Purchased Transportation

TotalTravel

Total Police Department

School Crossing Guards
Personal Services

Compensation
Wages - Seasonal HourlY

Total Compensation

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare
lnsurance - Workers Compensation
lnsurance - Unemployment

continued.

11,000
928

6,751
925

$

5,500
440

1,045
56, I 00

110
3,300

990
2,200

825
6,600

275

11,000
798

165
275

8,580

5,500
440

1,045
56,100

110
2,470
1,690
2,200

825
6,600

275

165
275

8,580

3,429
241
919

46,824
16

1,681
1,687
1,590

222
1,480

139

$ $ $ 4,249

2,071
199
126

9,276
94

789
3

610
603

5J20
136

3

49

6,390

116
275

2,190

$ 98,203 $ 98,203 $ 72.343 $ 25,860

$ 2,200
275

1,485
440

2,200 $
275

1,485
4_40

$ 1,520
63

250
125

680
212

1,235
315

$

$

$ 1,605 .529

$ 4,400

$ 1,605,529

$ 2,442

$ 185,103

4,400 $ 1,958

$1

g 5,191 $ 2,291 $ 2,287 $ 4

$ 5,191 $ 2.291 g 2,287 $ 4

397
416
102

397
416

4,202

222
216

oçdFbç.ffistu|suFÚ1¡m14C^fR#ASø 6Mr5 0:r il

$

72

$ $ 175
200

4.202

$



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended Aoril 30 . 2006

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Expenditures (continued)
Public safety (continued)

School Crossing Guards (continued)
Personal Services (continued)

Benefits (continued)
Total Benefits

Total Personal Services

Commodities
Program Supplies
Protective Clothing & Equipment

Total Commodities

Total School Crossing Guards

Fire Department
Personal Services

Compensation
Wages - Full Time Salaried
Wages - Part Time Hourly
Wages - Sleep-in Duty
Wages - Paid-on-call Duty
Other Compensation

Total Personal Services

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Data Processing
Medical

Total Professional Services

Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Buildings & Grounds
R & M - Communications Equipment
R & M - Data Þrocessing Equipment

continued...

915 $ 5,015 $ 4,577 $$ 438

$ 6,106 $ 7,306 $ 6,864 $ 442

$ $ $ $
275 275 275

$ 275 $ 275 $ $ 275

$ 6,381 $ 7.581 $ 6,864 $ 717

$ $ $ $15,486
88,174
17,686
56,863
23,437

15,486
85,919
17,686
56,863
25,692

14,430
83,162
16,066
52,170
25,689

1,056
2,757
1,620
4,693

3

Total Compensation $ 201,646

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare $ 15,426
Employer Police / Fire Pension 11,358
lnsurance - Group Life and AD&D 402
lnsurance - Workers Compensation 16,132
lnsurance - Unemployment Compensation___2,862_

Total Benefits

$ 201,646 $ 191,517 $ 10,129

$ $ $

$ 46,180 $ 46,1 80 $ 42,508 $ 3,672

$ 247,826 g 247,826 S 234,025 $ 13,801

$ 2,750 $ $ 1 5,1 89
1,040

$

15,426
'11,358

402
16,747
2,247

14,651
10,921

190
16,746

775
437
212

1

2,247

100
15,200

1,100
11

60

$ 3,850 $ 16,300 $ 16,229 $ 71

193
660

1,100

620
371
246

3
289
854

eûdFkR.@\M(rylr@wMrnmlacÀFRffikcaslB 3jMr5 etu

$

73

$ 623
660

1,100

$ $



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comoarative totals for the fiscalvear ended Aoril 30. 2006)

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(N

Expenditures (continued)
Public safety (continued)

Fire Department (continued)
Contractual Services (continued)

Repair and Maintenance (continued)

R & M - Fire & EMS EquiPment

R&M-OfficeEquipment
R&M-Vehicles
R&M-OtherEquipment

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final

$ $ 5,720
960

11,000

500
550

:oo

5,

11

$ $5,720
958

10,259
2

741

Total Repair and Maintenance $ 19,003 $ 20.063 8 ,18,174 $ 1,889

$
210,964

8,321
2,736
4,879

3,700

Other Contractual
Advertising & Legal Publishing
Ambulance & EMS Service
Billing & Collection Services
Equipment lnstallation Services
Equipment Rental

lntergovernmental Fees and Dues
I ntergovernmental Service Contracts
ISP's & Data Services
Laundry / Uniform Services
Printing and Copying Services
Professional Assn Memberships & Dues

Purchased Program Services
Rodent / Mosquito Abatement
Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager
Training Services
Other Contractual

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Awards
Books and Publications
Cleaning & Maintenance Supplies
Computer Supplies
Concessions and Food

Copier Supplies
EMS Supplies
Firefighting Supplies
Fuel

Landscaping Supplies
Lubricants and Fluids
Office Supplies
Postage

Program Supplies
Protective Clothing & Equipment

$ $

$

$
232,100

13,200

4,675
1,100

213,700
13,200

4,400

1 ,100
825
550
935

4,125

4,400
3,000
1,255

825
550
935

4,805

700
3,000
1,255

825
550

4

5
700

754
804

727

1oo

181
1

35,730
1,100

$ 263.010 $ 249,500

$ 285,863

$ 235,925 $ 13,575

$ 285,863 8 270,328 $ 15,535

$ $ $$
825
110

1,650
330
220

3,300
1,100

13,200

825
110

1,650
330
220

3,300
1,100

11,785

1,512
220
191

3,244

825
110
138
110
29
56

1,100
3,140

110
550

55
3,300
3,300

8,645

182
367
47

3,243
2,991

conlinued.. 74

185
550

55
3,300
3,300

3
183

8
57

309



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006)

al
Amounts Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Expenditures (continued)
Public safety (continued)

Fire Department (continued)
Commodities (continued)

Service & Repair Parts
Small Tools
Stationery
Street Materials - Signs and Barricades
Training Supplies
Uniforms

Total Commodities

Travel
Conference and Meeting Registration
Local Mileage, Parking and Tolls
Lodging

Meals
Purchased Transportation

Total Travel

Total Fire Department

Total public safety

Public Works Department
Personal Services

Compensation
Wages - Full Time Salaried
Wages - Full Time HourlY

Wages - Part Time Hourly
Wages - Seasonal Hourly
Wages - Overtime
Other Compensation

Total Compensation

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare
Employer IMRF

lnsurance - Group Life and AD&D
lnsurance - Group Medical
lnsurance - Group Dental
lnsurance - Workers Compensation
lnsurance - Unemployment

Total Benefits

Total Personal Services

continued...

$ 32,395 $ 32,395 $ 25,025 $

$

$ $ $1 ,100
275
220

1,757
271
117

$1,760
275
220

1,230
2.200

3
4

4

031

550
2,200

1,226
1,012 188

7.370

$ 880
275

1,100
110

880
275

1,100
110

325

848

$ $ 555
275
252
110

$ 2,365

$ 568,449

2,365 $$ 1.173 $ 1,192

$ 568,449 $ 530,551 $ 37,898

$ 2,375,304 g 2,384,974 $ 2,160,473 $ 224,501

$ $ 41,402
71,326
13,392
14,038
11,090

$ 39,585
71,115
12,345
14,031
11,088

$

$ 151 ,248 $ 151,248 $ 148,164 $ 3,084

$ 11,571
26,042

1,203
47,740

3,1 01

12,960
47

$

41,402
78,826
17,642
7,838
5,540

1,817
211

1,047
7
2

11,335
26,038

568
47,023

3,098
12,955

$ 11,571
24,067

1,203
49,980

2,696
12,100

1,047

$ 236
4

635
717

3
5

47

$ 102,664 $ 102,664 $ 101,017 $ 1,647

253,912 $

açdF5n.dtucløl¡#wMr2tffYrlcfR!¡*tltúkdÑd @15 9:f s

$

75

253,912 $ 249,181 $ 4,731



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal Vear ended April 30, 2006

Budqeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)Original Final

Expenditures (continued)
Public safety (continued)

Public Works Department (continued)
Contractual Services

Professional Services
Data Process¡ng
Engineering and Architectural
Medical

Total Professional Services

Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Communications Equipment
R & M - PublicWorks Equipment
R & M - Street Lights & Signals
R&M-Vehicles

880 $ 1,430 $ 1,428 $

$ $ $ $
taa
595

835
595

550
330

2

$ 2

$ $ $ $ 15
1

165
1,100
2,200

15
1,465
1,700

13,2105 500

1,464
1,671

13,208
29

2

Total Repair and Maintenance $ 8,965 $ 16,390 $ 16,343 $ 47

Other Contractual
Advertising & Legal Publishing $
Animal Control Services
Equipment Rental
Forestry & Landscaping Services
lntergovernmental Fees and Dues
ISP's & Data Services
Professional Assn Memberships & Dues
Purchased Program Services
Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager
Training Services

uru
825

2,750
220
660

3,850
2,640

550

475
1,350

50
20
60

$ $ $

5,650
2,240

50

472
1,346

5,650
2,171

;
4

50
20
u:

69
50

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Cleaning & Maintenance Supplies
Computer Supplies
Concessions and Food
Fuel
Landscaping Supplies
Lubricants and Fluids
Office Supplies
Postage

Program Supplies
Protective Clothing & Equipment

$ 12,320 $ 9,895 $ 9,63e $ 256

$ 22 165 $ 27,715 27,410 $ 305

$$$$
500385

20013

496

2
5,822

569

4

3,442
705
205
165
108

3
1

825
660
165
110

3,300
330

13,200
825
660
165
110

5,825
570

9,758
120
455

continued. 76



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)Original Final

Expenditures (continued)
Highways and Streets (continued)

Public Works Department (continued)
Commodities (continued)

Service & Repair Parts
Small Tools
Street Materials - Aggregate
Street Materials - Bituminum
Street Materials - Salt and Sand
Street Materials - Signs and Barricades
Street Materials - Other
Uniforms
Utilities - Public Way

Total Commodities

Travel
Conference and Meeting Registration
Local Mileage, Parking and Tolls
Lodging

Meals

Total Travel

Contingency
Property Damage

Total Contingency

Total Public Works Department

Total highways and streets

Sanitation
Garbage Disposal

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Data Processing

Total Professional Services

Other Contractual
Garbage and Recycling
Printing and Copying Services

Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

3,300
1,650
6,600
5,500

5,900
1,650
8,325
5,500

I
1,293

1

2,170

4,950
3,850

275
71,500

4,950
1,095

275
61,500

4,074
1,095

140
2,435

$ $ $ $5,892
357

8,324
3,330

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

876

135
59,065

$ 116,600 $ 111,050 $ 95,201 $ 15,849

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ 392,677 $ 392,677 $ 371,792 $ 20,885

$ 392,677 $ 392,677 $ 371,792 $ 20,885

$ 286 $ 286 $ 65$ 221

$ 286 $ 286 $ 65$ 221

$ 286,198
275

$ 286,1 98
275

$ 250,773 $ 35,425
275

$ 286,473 $ 286,473 $ 250,773 $ 35 700

$ 286,759 $ 286,759 $ 250,838

continued..
l.CAFRffikd^S& @15 r!il 77

$ 35,700



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comoarative totals for the fiscal vear ended Aori 30. 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Expenditures (continued)
Sanitation (continued)

Garbage Disposal
Commodities

Postage
Program Supplies

Total Commodities

TotalGarbage Disposal

TotalSanitation

Culture and recreation
Recreation Programs

Personal Services
Compensation
Wages - Full Time Hourly
Wages - Part Time Hourly
Wages - Overtime

Total Compensation

Total Benefits

Total Personal Services

Original Final

$ 440 $ $ 440

$ 440 $ 440 $ $ 440

$ 287,199 $ 287,199 $ 250,838 $ 36,361

$ 287,199 $ 287,199 $ 250,838 $ 36,361

$ 15,078 $ $ 9,017
903

$

447

$ 15,525 $ 14,205 $ 9,920 $ 4,285

$ $

$440

12,853
905
447

3,836
2

447

Total Repair and Maintenance $

Contractual Services
Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Buildings & Grounds
R&M-OfficeEquipment
R & M - Recreation Equipment

Other Contractual
Equipment Rental
Forestry & Landscaping Services
Janitorial
Printing and Copying Services
Purchased Program Services

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare $
Employer IMRF
lnsurance - Group Life and AD&D
lnsurance - Group Medical
lnsurance - Group Dental
lnsurance - Workers Compensation
lnsurance - Unemployment Compensation

$

$ 10,763 $ 10,763 $ 6,805 $ 3,958

$ 26,288 $ 24,968 $ 16,725 $ 8,243

$ $ $ $

$ $ $

2,200 $ 3,500 $ 3,500 $

1j62
2,654

200
5,174

250
1,214

109

1J62
2,654

200
5,174

250
1,214

109

759
1,783

54
3,107

235
867

403
871
146

2,067
15

347
109

550
1,650

78

50
1,650

continued...

$

1,500
50

150



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended Aoril 30. 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Nesative)

Expenditures (continued)
Culture and Recreation (continued)

Recreation Programs (continued)
Other Contractual (continued)

Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Awards
Concessions and Food

Landscaping Supplies
Postage
Program Supplies
Uniforms
Other Materials and Supplies

Total Commodities

Total Recreation Programs

Park Maintenance
Personal Services

Compensation
Wages - Seasonal Hourly

Total Compensation

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare
lnsurance - Workers Compensation
lnsurance - Unemployment

Total Benefìts

Total Personal Services

Contractual Services
Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Buildings & Grounds

Total Repair and Maintenance

Other Contractual
Equipment Rental
Forestry & Landscaping Services

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

continued...

Final

$ $ $ $

$ 4,400 $ 5,200 $ 5 000 $

$ 4,400 $ 5,200 $ 5,000 $

Original

200

200

$$$$ 25
1,1701,870

28
1,650

25
1,085

18
2,8_94

28
2,895

85

10
1

$ 3,548 $ 4,118 $ 4,022 $ 96

$ 34 236 $ 34,286 g 25,747 $ 8,539

$ 3,816 $ 3,816 $ $ 3,816

$ 3,816 $ 3,816 $ $ 3,816

$ $ $ $291
306

75

291
306

75

291
306

75

$ azz 672 $ g 672$

$ 4,488 $ 4.488 $ $ 4,488

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ 2,750 $
44 000

2,750
44,000

2,443
36,609

307
7,391

$ $

$ 46 750 $ 46,750 $ 39,052 $ 7,698

$ 46,750 $

79

46 750 $ 39,052 $ 7,698



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final

Expenditures (continued)
Culture and Recreation (continued)

Park Maintenance (continued)
Commodities

Landscaping Supplies
Program Supplies
Service & Repair Parts

Small Tools
Street Materials - Signs and Barricades

Total Commodities

Total Park Maintenance

Seniors Programs
Contractual Services

Professional Services
Medical

Total Professional Services

Other Contractual
lntergovernmental Fees and Dues
lntergovernmental Fees and Dues
Printing and Copying Services
Purchased Program Services

Total Benefits

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Awards
Concessions and Food

Postage
Program Supplies
Other Materials and Supplies

Total Commodities

Total Seniors Programs

550
3,850

165
550

550
3,850

165
550

320
3,072

165
51238

$ 5,1 15 $ 1,046 $ 4,069

$ 56,353 $ 56,353 $ 40,098 $ 10,ZSS

100 $ 100 $ $ 1,100$

$ 1,100 $ 1,100 $ $ 1,100

$ $ $ $

330
275

255

$ 605 $ 605 $ 350 $ 255

I 705 $ 1,705 $ 350 $ 1,355

$

$ $ $ 230 $
778

$ 5,115

350
255
350

$

$ $ $220
3,300

220
2,750

220
3,300

220
2,750

220
2,231

1,166

1

1

06;
220
ut1

$ 6,490 $ 6,490 $ 3,617 $ 2,873

$ I r95 $ 8,195 $ 3,967 $ 4 228

continued.. 80



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended April 30, 2006)

o
Amounts Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Expenditures (continued)
Gulture and recreation (continued)

Senior Center Maintenance
Contractual Services

Professional Services
Engineering and Architectural

Total Professional Services

Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Buildings & Grounds

1,100 $ 3,530 $ 3,529 $$

Total Repair and Maintenance $ 14.520

$ 1,100 $

$ 14,520 $ 11,985 $

11 985 $

$ $

3,530 $ 3,529 $

7 156 $ 4.829

7,1 56 $ 4,829

152 $
Other Contractual
Advertising & Legal Publishing
Equipment Rental

Forestry & LandscaPing Services

Janitorial
Purchased Program Services
Rodent / Mosquito Abatement

Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Cleaning & Maintenance SuPPlies

Program Supplies
Service & RePair Parts

Small Tools
Utilities - Village Buildings

Total Commodities

Travel
Meals

Total Travel

165

550
385
,375
495
625

165

550
385
,375
495
550

$

290
116

1,017
420
624

13

260
269
358

75
I

$ 3,520 $ 3,595 $ 2,619 $

140 $ 19,110 $ 13,304

976

19 $ 5.806

$ 275$$275 275
30

110

$

110

28 2
110

5522,200 2,200 1,648

$ 2 585 $ 2.615 76$ 939

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

Total Senior Center Maintenance $ 21 725 $

Beautification Committee
Contractual Services

Other Contractual
Forestry & LandscaPing Services

Purchased Program Services 4,620

725 $ 14.980 $ 6.74521

$$$$

continued...
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended April 30. 2006)

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive

Expenditures (continued)
Culture and recreation (continued)

Beautification Committee (continued)
Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Awards
Concessions and Food
Landscaping Supplies
Office Supplies
Program Supplies
Small Tools

Total Commodities

Travel
Local Mileage, Parking and Tolls

Total Travel

Total Beautification Committee

Historical Committee
Personal Services

Compensation
Stipend - Boards and Commissions

Total Compensation

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare

TotalBenefits

Total Personal Services

Contractual Services
Other Contractual
Purchased Program Services

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Final

$ 4,620 $ 4,620 $ 4,400 $

Origilal

220

$ 4,620 $ 4,620 $ 4,400 $ 220

25
3

870

$ 385
55

1,100

385
110
870

$ $ $360
107

449275 450

$ 1 ,815 $ r ,815 $ 916 $ 899

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ 6,435 $ 6,435 $ 5,316 $ 1,'t 19

$ 3,300 $ 3,300 $ 3,000 $ 300

$ 3,300 $ 3,300 $ 3,000 $ 300

$ 253 $ 253 $ 230 $ 23

$ 253 $ 253 $ 230 $ 23

$ 3,553 $ 3,553 $

$ 165 $ 165 $

3 230 $ 323

$ 165

$ 165 $ 165 $ $ 165

165 $

continued...

$
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended Aoril 30, 2006)

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Neqative)

Expenditures (continued)
Culture and recreation (continued)

Historical Committee (continued)
Commodities

Awards
Program Supplies

Total Commodities

Total Historical Committee

Total culture and recreation

Capitaloutlay
Mayor and Village Board

Equipment - Communications
Equipment - Vehicles

Total Mayor and Village Board

General & Financial Administration
Equipment - Communicat¡ons
Equipment - Data Processing
Equipment - Office

Building Maintenance
Building Acquisition/Consll mprvmnts

Equipment - Other

Total Building Maintenance

Building & Code Enforcement Department
Equipment - Data Processing
Equipment - Office
Equipment - Data Processing

Total Building & Code Enforcement Dept

Police Department
Equipment - Communications
Equipment - Data Processing
Equipment - Office
Equipment - Public Safety
Equipment - Vehicles
Equipment - Other

Total Police Department

continued.

Budoeted Amounts
Orioinal Final

$ $ $ $
220220220

$ 220 $ 220 $ $ 220

$ 3,938 $ 3,938 $ 3 230 $

$ r30.882 $ 130,932 $ 93,338 $

$ $ 445 $

708

37 594

3$442

$ $ 445 $ 442 $ 3

$ $ 210
1,000

225

$ $210
997
216

3
I

Total General & Financial Administration $ $ 1.435 $ 1.423 $ 12

$ 2,750 $ 28,025 $ 28,017 $ I

$ 2,750 $ 28.025

$

$ 28,017

$

220

:uu

220

:'u
$

$

660
5,567

$$660$

$

$

200
370

20
15

$

$

$ 605 $ 605 $ 570 $ 35

9,900
660

9,900
150

10,790
88,060

550

4,333
149

10,790
65,112

$

7,700
91,300

550

1

22,948
550

110,110 $ 110,110

oRdÊËnølsdc@tswMl2i¡ñ 11cÆRffi 
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

rative totals for the

Expenditures (continued)
Capital outlay (continued)

Fire Department
Building Acquisition/ConsUlmprvmnts
Equipment - Communications
Equipment - Data Processing
Equipment - Public Safety
Equipment - Vehicles
Equipment - Other

Total Fire Department

Public Works Department
Building Acquisition/ConsVlmprvmnts
Street System Construction/lmprvmnts
Equipment - Construction
Equipment - Maintenance
Equipment - Vehicles

Total Public Works Department

Recreation Programs
Equipment - Playground

Total Recreation Programs

Park Maintenance
Equipment - Maintenance
Equipment - Playground

Total Park Maintenance

Senior Center Maintenance
Building Acquisition/ConsUlmprvmnts
Equipment - Data Processing
Equipment - Other

r ended 30 2006

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Neqative)

$ $ $
,ooo
,200
,300

50

$
1

1

2

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

2,200
2,200

1,363
1,131
2,300

37
69

50550

$ 4,950 $ 4,950 $ 4,794 $ 156

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $440
4,950

440
4,950

$ $ 440
4,950

$ 5,390 $ 5.390 $ $ 5,390

$

27,500

Total Senior Center Maintenance $ 73.700 $ 27,700 $

Total capital outlay $ 197,505 $ 178,660 $ 140,804 $ 37,856

Total expenditures $ 4,634,164 $ 4,630,234 $ 4,090,182 $ 5¿0,052

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures $ (487,984) $ (484,054) $ 247,106 $ 731,160

$ 46,200 $ 200
680

26,820

$ 200
680

24,494 2 326

25,174 $ 2,526

continued..
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

(With comparative totals for the fiscal vear ended April 30, 2006)

Budoeted Amounts
Orioinal Final

$ 200,000

5,000
(232,500)

5,000
(232,500)

Actual
Amounts

2,700
(261,045I

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(N

(2,300)
(28,545)

Other financing sources and uses
Transfers in
Proceeds From Capital Leases
Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, January 1

Fund balances, December 31

$ 2oo,00o $ 50,000 $ (150,000)

$ (27.500) $ (27,500) $ (208,345) $( 180.845)

$

$

(515,484)

572.304

$ (511,554)

$ 572,304

$ 38,761

$ 572,304

$ 611,065

$

$

550,315

$ 56,820 $ 60.750 $ 550,315

continued. 85



Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Special Revenue - Non-home Rule Sales Tax Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Budgeted Amounts- -õrioinal Final
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Nqgalivg)

Revenues
State shared taxes

Non-home rule sales tax

Total state shared taxes

Total revenues

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources and uses
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, January 1

Fund balances, December 31

$ 425.000 $ 000 $ 475,163 $ 90,1.63

$ 50,163$ , 4?q,000

$ 425,000 $ 425.000 $ 475.163 $ 50,163

$ 425,000 $ 425,000 $ 475,163 $ 50,163

$ (230,000) $ (230,000) $ ,000) $ 180,000

$ $ (230,000) $ (50,000) $ 180,000

425,163 $ 230,163

$ 425,000 $ 41q,,1ç3

$ 195,000

$ 1,611,305

$ 195,000

$ 1,614,305 1,61 4 305 $

$

$

$r 305$1 $ $ 230,163
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Special Revenue - Tax lncrement Financing Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Original
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Local taxes

TIF #1 increment

Total local taxes

lnterest
lnterest from deposits

Total interest

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government

Contractual services
Professional services
Consulting
Legal - review
Other professional services

Total professional services

Other contractual
Bank fees & charges
Community develoPment grants

Purchased program services

Total other contractual

Total contractual services

Total general government

Capital outlay
Land acquisition
Equipment - other

Total capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (defìciency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources and uses
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Total fund balances, January 1,

Fund balances, December 31

Budgeted Amounts
Final

$ .000 $ 220,000 $ 214,719 $ (5,281)

220 000 $ 220,000 $ 214.719 $ (5,281)

$ 2,250 $ 2,250 $ 3.203 $ 953

$ 2.250 $ 2,250 $ 3,203 $ 953

g 222,250 $ 222,250 $ 217 922 $ (4,328)

$ $ $ $11,000
1 ,100
2,200

11,000
1,100

3,540

2,590

7,460
1,100

102 600

$ 14.300 $ 14,700 $ 6,130 $ 8.570

$ $ $ $
156,200

30
156,200
27,070

30
148,992 7,208

27,07027 .500

$ 183,700 $ 183,300 $ 149,022 8 34,278

$ 198.000 $ 1e8,009

$ 198,000

$ 155,152 $ 42,848

$ 42,848$ 155,152

$

$ 198,,000

$ 27,500 $ $ 27,500
5 500 5 500

33 $ 33,000 $ $ 33,000

$ 231,000 $ 231,000 $ 159,152 $ 75,848

$ (8,750) $ (8,750) s 62,770 g 71,520

(1 62,500) (162,500) (106,300) 56,200

27,500
5,500

$ (162,500) $ (162,500)

(171,250)

434,389

$ (106,300)

$ (43,530)

$ 56,200

127,720$ (171 ,250)

$ 434,389

$ 263,139

$

$

$

$ $ 434,389

$ 263,139 $ 390,859

OtuFkR6\sdft*lrdwel2lslacÆRffiff 6lH Mts 957N 87
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Funding Progress
lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Last six valuation

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial
Accrued

Total Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued

Liability
Funded

Ratio

Annual
Covered
Payroll

845,380
784,727
812,130
808,022
760,241
758,378

Ratio of Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued
Liability to Annual
Covered Pavroll

116.630/o

116.14o/o
166.43%
162.02o/o
149.41o/o
168.27%

12t31t2009 $
12t31t2010 $
12t31t2011 $
12t31t2012 $
12t31t2013 $
12t31t2014 $

1,330,854
1,548,642
1,602,078
1,914,286
1,941,661
2,079,805

$ 2,316,789 $
$ 2,460,051 $
$ 2,953,737 $
$ 3,223,407 $
$ 3,077,552 $
$ 3,355,915 $

985,935
911,409

1,351,659
1,309,121
't,135,891

1,276,110

57.44o/o $
62.950/o $
54.24o/o $
59.39%o $
63.09% $
61.97% $

Notes: Actuarial cost method -

Asset valuation method -

Assumed inflation rate -
Assumed investment return -
Assumed projected salary

increases -
Assumed postretirement

benefit increases -

Amortization method -

Amortization period -
Digest of assumption changes -

Market value -

Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Entry age
Market related with 5 year smoothing within 20% corridor
4.00 percent
7.50 percent, net of administrative expenses
0.4 to 10.0 percent depending on age and
service attributable to seniority / merit

3.00 percent of the original amount of benefit
Level percent of payroll, open period
30 years
The actuarial assumptions used to determine the actuarial accrued liability for
2012 a¡e based on the 2010 Experience Study.
On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31,2014
is $2,497,421 On a market value basis, the funded ratio would be 74.42o/o.

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Employer Contr¡butions
lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Last six fiscal vears

Fiscal
Year

Annual
Pension Cost

(APC)
Employer

Contributions

Percentage of APC
Recognized as
Contributions

from Emplovers
Net Pension
Oblisation

4t30t2010 $
12t31t2010 $
12t31t2011 $
12t31t2012 $
12t31t2013 $
12t31t2014 $

115,610 $
82,099 $

118,412 $
116,536 $
132,992 $
136,537 $

114,197
78,935

118,314
116,436
132,890
136,432

98.78o/o $
96.15% $
99.92% $
99.91% $
99.92o/o $
99.92o/o $

1,413
4,577
4,675
4,775
4,877
4,982
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Village of South Ghicago I'leights, lllinois

Required Supplementary I nformation
Schedule of Funding Progress
Police Pension Fund
Last six valuation

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

4t30t2007 $
4t30t2008 $
4t30t2010 $

12t31t2011 $
12t31t2013 $
12t31t2014 $

3,283,542 $
3,351,547 $
3,295,320 $
3,259,483 $
3,506,058 $
3,505,698 $

3,639,458 $
3,981,499 $
4,451,888 $
4,525,331 $
5,044,356 $
5,492,486 $

Total Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued

Liability

355,916
629,952

1,156,568
1,2ô5,848
1,538,298
1,986,788

90.22o/o $
84.18% $
74.02o/o $
72.03% $
69.50% $
63.83% $

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

Funded
Ratio

Annual
Covered
Payroll

Ratio of Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued
Liability to Annual
Covered Payroll

352,851
293,738
316,775
343,987
366,009
325,427

100.87o/o
214.460/o

365.11o/o

367.99%
420.29o/o
610.52o/o

Notes: Actuarial cost method -

Asset valuation method -

Assumed inflation rate -
Assumed investment return -

Assumed projected salary
increases -

Assumed postret¡rement
benefit increases -

Amortization method -
Amortization period -
Digest of assumption changes -

Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Entry age normal cost - for years prior to 11112011

Projected unit credit cost - for years beginning on or afþr 11112011

5 year Average Market Value (required by Public Act 096-1495)
3.00 percent
7.00 percent

5.5 percent

3.00 percent of the original amount of benefit
Level percent of payroll, closed period
26 years
No changes from the prior year

Required Supplementary I nformation
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Police Pension Fund
Last six fiscal years

Fiscal
Year

4t3012010
12t31t2010
12t31t2011
12t3112012
12t31t2013
12t31t2014

$
$
$
$
$
$

Annual
Pension Cost Employer

Conlributions

83,778
30,569
99,060
96,810
98,436

117,183

Percentage of APC
Recognized as
Contributions

from Emolovers
Net Pension
Obliqation

79,927 $
79,927 $

1 15,095 $
115,095 $
'108,115 $
134,168 $

1Q4.82o/o $
38.25% $
86.070/o $
84.11o/o $
91.05% $
87.34o/o $

(3,851)
(3,85r)
12,184
12,184
21,863
38,848
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Police Pension Fund
December 31 2014

Fiscal Year
Endinq

Actuarially
Determined
Contribution

Contributions
ln Relation To
The Actuarially

Determined
Contribution

Contribution
Excess /

(Deficiency)

Covered
Employee

Contributions As
A Percentage Of

Covered Employee

. Payroll

$ 36.01%12t31t2014 $ 107,793 $ 117,183 $

Notes: Actuarial valuation date -
Actuarial cost method -
Amortization method -
Remaining amortization period -
Asset valuation method -
Price inflation -
Salary increases -
lnvestment rate of return -
Retirement age -
Mortality -

Other information -

9,390 $ 325,427

December 31,2014
Aggregate entry age normal.
Level percent of payroll, closed period.
26 year closed period
5 year smoothed market; 20 percent corridor.
3.00 percent
5.50 percent
7.00 percent.
50 -70
Mortality rates based on the RP-2000 CHBCA Mortality Table.
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31,2014
valuation were based on the results of an actuar¡al experience
study conducted by the lllinois Department of lnsurance
datred September 26, 2012.
There were no benefit changes during the year.

This information is formatted to comply with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 67

Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of lnvestment Returns
Police Pension Fund
December 31 2014

Fiscal
Year End

Average Money-Weighted
Rate of Return, net of
lnvestment Expenses

1.88o/o12131t2014
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability

Police Pension Fund
December 31 2014

Total pension liability
Service cost
lnterest on the total pension liability
Changes in benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience

of the total pension liabilitY
Changes of assumPtions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning

Total pension liability - ending

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - emPloYee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions

Administrative expense
Other (net transfer)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

Plan fiduciary net position - ending

Net pension liability (asset)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability

Covered valuation payroll

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered valuation payroll

$

2014

$ 98,719
345,737

(189,062)
403,248

Q10.512\

448,130

5,044,356

$

117,183
32,865
64,722

(210,512)
(4,618)

(360)

3,506,058

$ 3,505,698

$1

$

63.83%

325,427

610.52o/o
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Funding Progress
Firefighters Pension Fund
Last six valuation

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

Total Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued

Liability
Funded

Ratio

Annual
Covered

Ratio of Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued
Liability to Annual
Covered Payroll

4t3012007 $
4t30t2008 $
4t30t2010 $

12t31t2011 $
12t31t2013 $
12t31t2014 $

142,381 $
132,848 $
106,091 $
83,668 $
59,612 $
47,381 $

283,555 $
248,657 $
247,482 $
246,460 $
247,384 $
264,21Q $

141,174
1't5,809
141,391
162,792
187,772
216,829

50.21% $
53.43o/o $
42.87o/o $
33.95% $
24.10o/o $
17.93% $

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Notes Actuarial cost method -

Asset valuation method -

Assumed inflation rate -
Assumed investment return -

Assumed projected salary
increases -

Assumed postretirement
benefit increases -

Amortization method -

Amortization period -
Digest of assumption changes -

Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Entry age normal cost - for years prior to 11112011

Projected unit credit cost - for years beginning on or after 11112011

5 year Average Market Value (required by Public Act 096-1495)
3.00 percent
7.00 percent

5.5 percent

3.00 percent of the original amount of benefit
Level percent of payroll, closed period
26 years
No changes from the prior year

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Firefighters Pension Fund
Last six fiscal vears

Fiscal
Year

Annual
Pension Cost

(APC)
Employer

Contributions

Percentage of APC
Recognized as
Contributions

from Employers

Net Pension
Obligation

(Asset)

4t30t2010
12t31t2010
12t31t2011
12t31t2012
12t31t2013
12t31t2014

6,016 $
5,134 $
7,663 $
7,663 $
7,095 $
8,542 $

5,273
2,638
9,357
9,689
9,884

10,921

87.65% $
51.38o/o $

122.11o/o $
126.44% $
13931% $
127.85o/o $

273
2,769
1,075
(e51)

(3,740)
(6,11e)

$
$
$
$
$
$
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Firefighters Pension Fund
December 31 2014

Fiscal Year
Endinq

Actuarially
Determined
Contribution

Contributions
ln Relation To
The Actuarially

Determined
Contribution

Contribution
Excess /

(De{iciency)

12t31t2014 $ 7,121 $ 10,921 $ 3,800 $

Covered
Employee

Payroll

$ 0.00%

December 31,2014
Aggregate entry age normal.
Level percent of payroll, closed period.
26 year closed period
5 year smoothed market; 20 percent corridor.
3.00 percent
5.50 percent
7.00 percent.
50 -70
Mortality rates based on the RP-2000 CHBCA Mortality Table.
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31,2014
valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study conducted by the lllinois Department of lnsurance
datred September 26, 2Q12.

There were no benefit changes during the year.

Contributions As
A Percentage Of

Covered Employee
Payroll

Notes: Actuarial valuation date -
Actuarial cost method -
Amortization method -

Remaining amortization period -

Asset valuation method -
Price inflation -

Salary increases -
lnvestment rate of return -

Retirement age -
Mortality -

Other information -

This information is formatted to comply with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 67

Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of lnvestment Returns
Firefighters Pension Fund
December 31 2014

12t31t2014

Fiscal
Year End

Average Money-Weighted
Rate of Return, net of
lnvestment Expenses
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability

Firefighters Pension Fund
December 31.2014

Total pension liabilitY
Service cost
lnterest on the total pension liability
Changes in benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience

of the total pension liabilitY
Changes of assumPtions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning

Total pension liabilitY - ending

Plan fiduciary net Position
Contributions - emPloYer
Contributions - emPloYee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions

Other (net transfer)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

Plan fiduciary net position 'ending

Net pension liabilitY (asset)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability

Covered valuation PaYroll

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered valuation payroll

$

20 14

16,524

4,154
18,792

(22,645)

16,825

.384

$ 264,209

$ 10,921

7
(22,645)

(5'14)

(12,231)

59,612

$ 47,381

$ 216,828

17.93o/o

0.00%

$
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Funding Progress
Retiree Health lnsurance Plan
Last six valuation years

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

Total Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued

Liability
Funded
Ratio

Annual
Covered
Payroll

Ratio of Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued
Liability to Annual
Covered Payroll

4t30t2010 $
12t31t2011 $
12t31t2013 $
12t31t2014 $

$ 3,012,056 $
$ 3,374,049 $
$ 4,669,750 $
$ 4,669,750 $

3,012,056
3,374,049
4,669,750
4,669,750

0.00% $
0.00% $
0.007o $
0.00% $

926,094
990,513

1,010,089
1,034,571

325.24o/o
340.64%
462.310/o
451.37o/o

Notes: Actuarial cost method -
Asset valuation method -
Assumed inflation rate -
Assumed investment return -
Assumed projected salary

increases -
Assumed healthcare

inflation rate -
Amortization method -
Amortization period -
Digest of assumption changes -

Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Retiree Health lnsurance Plan
Last six fiscal years

Entry age
Market value
3.00 percent
4.00 percent

4.0 percent

8.00 percent initial, 6.00% ultimate
Level percent of payroll, open period
30 years
The Village of South Chicago Heights implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for
the fiscal year ended April 30, 2010. lnformation for prior years is not available.
The Village is required to have an actuarial study performed triennially.

Fiscal
Year

Annual
OPEB Cost Employer

Contributions

Percentage ofAnnual
OPEB Cost Contributed

from Emplovers
Net OPEB

Obligation (Asset)

4t30t2010
12t31t2010
12131t2011
12t31t2012
12t31t2013
1213112014

241,240
'r53,885

241,604
265,849
263,813
335,565

68,244
43,978
68,244
52,783
75,635
79,666

28.29o/o $
28.58o/o $
28.25% $
19.85% $
28.670/o $
23.74o/o $

172,996
282,903
346,356
559,422
747,600

1,003,499
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Nesative), , Orisif,al Final

Revenues
Local taxes

Propefi tax - bond & interest
Property tax - purchase agreement

Total local taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service

Contractual services
Other contractual
Bank service fee

Total other contractual

Total contractual services

Principal - ambulance note
Principal - fire truck note
Principal - 2013 auto loans

Totalprincipal

Total interest

Total debt service

Total expenditures

Fund balances, January 1

Fund balances, December 3l

continued...

$ $ $ (1,155) $ (1,155)
(145)

$ $ $ (1,300) $ (1,300)

$ $ $ (1,300) $ (1,300)

1,040 1,036 4

$ $ 1,040 $ 1,036 $ 4

$ $ 1,040 $ 1,036 $ 4

Principal
Principal - 2004 street improvement note $ $ $ $1 19,405

13,330
19,568
7,400

1 19,405
13,330
19,568
7,400

1 19,385
13,327
19,563
7,400

20
3

$ 159,703 $ 159,703 $ 159 675 $ 28

lnterest
lnterest - 2004 street improvement note $
lnterest - ambulance note
lnterest - fire truck note
lnterest - 2013 auto loans

2,870
645

7,045
901

5,760
645

7,045
901

5,530
642

7,042
901

$ $ $ 230
3

$ 11,461 $ 14,351 $ 14,115 $ 236

$ "t71,164 $ 175,094 $ 174,826 $ 268

$ 171,164 $ 175,094 $ 174,826 $ 268

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (171,164) (175,0e4) (176,126) (1,032)

Other financing sources and uses
Transfers in $ 171,175 $ 171,175 $ 174,825 $ 3,650

Total other financing sources and uses $ 171,175 $ 171,175 g 174,825 $ 3,650

Net change in fund balances 11 $$

$

2,618

9,116 $

9,127 $

(3,e1e) $

9,116 $

(1,301)

9,116

$

$

aRdÊe@sc@tr@wRw12rñ 1¡cÆR ffiG
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 31,2014

Funds
Fuel 11 CDBG

Project FundTax Fund Services Fund Total

Assets

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts / vouchers receivable
Prepaid items
lnventory

Total assets

$

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances

Liabilities
Accounts / vouchers payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Grants

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted for highways & streets
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and
fund balances

$

$ 4,152

$

$ 54,272 $ 16.433 $ 164,366 $ 235.071

$ 50,120 $ 1,016 $ 4,285 $ 55,421

$ 50.1 20 $ 1,016 g 4,285 $ ÞþÆ1

$ $ $ 160,000 160 000

$ $ $ 160,000 $ 160,000

40,494
10,423

3.355

32
598

15,803

4,366
160,000

44,892
171,021

15,803
3,355

$ $ $

3,355
797

1 9,1 58
878

1386)

$ 15,803 $
81 $

. (386)

15 4 $ 81 $ 19,650

54,272 $ 16,433 $ 164,366 $ 235,071
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Capital
Project Fund

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

$ $ 44,892
171,021

15,803
3,355

$ $ 235,071

$ $ 55,42'l
9.6009,600

$ 9,600 $ 65,021

$ $ 160,000

$ $ 160,000

$ $ 19,158
878

(9,986)(9,600)

$ (9,600) $ 10,050

$ $ 235,071
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

Soecial Revenue Funds

Tax Fund Services Fund Proiect Fund

'-

Total

Revenues
Local taxes
State shared taxes
Grants
lnterest

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current

General government
Public safety
Highways and streets

Total current expenditures

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures

Other financing sources and uses
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, January 1

Fund balances, December 3l

$ $ 9,755

154

$ 137,034 $ 9,909 $ $ 146,943

$ $ $ $
184,971 184,971

69,44948 764

$ 48,764 $ 184,971 $ 20,685 $ 254,420

$ 55,561 $ $ $ 55,561

$ 104,325 $ 184,971 $ 20,685 $ 309,981

$ 32,709 $ (175,062) $ (20,685) $ (163,038)

$ 9,755
102,535
34,480

173

102,535
34,480

l9

$-
(124,e15)

$ (124,915)

$ 190,450 $ 20,685 $ 211,135
(124,915)

$ 190,450 $ 20,685 $ 86,220

$

$

(e2,206)

96,358

15,388

29

$

$

$

$ 81

$

$

(76,818)

96,468

$ 4.152 $ 15,417 $ 8l$ 19,650
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Capital
Proiect.Fund

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

$ $ 9,755
102,535
34,480

173

$ $ 146.943

$ 9,600 $ 9,600
't84,971
69,449

$ 9,600 $ 264,020

$ 55,561

$ e,600 $ 3€Þq1

$ (e,600) $ (172,638)

$

$ 211,135
(124,915)

$ 86,220

(e,600) (86,418)

96,468

$ (9,600) $ 10,050

$

$

$

$

$

$
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Special Revenue - Motor FuelTax Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

Budgeted Amounts Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Nesative)

Revenues
State shared taxes

Motor fuel tax

Total state shared taxes

Grants
State grants

Total grants

lnterest
lnterest from deposits

Total interest

Total revenues

Expenditures
Highway & streets

Contractual services
Professional services
Engineering & architectural
Testing labs

Total professional services

Repair & maintenance
R&M - street lights & signals

Total repair & maintenance

Other contractual
Forestry & landscaping services

Total other contractual

Total contractual services

Commodities
Street materials - salt

Total commodities

Total highway & streets

Capitaloutlay
Street system consVimprovements

Total capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

continued..

Final

$ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 102,535 $ 2,535

$ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 102,535 $ 2,535

$ 17,000 $ 17,000 $ 34,480 $ 17,480

$ 17,000 $ 17,000 $ 34,480 $ 17,480

9riginal

$ 50$ 50$ 19 $ (31)

$ 50 $ 50$ 19 $ (31)

$ 19,984$ r 17,050 $ 117,050 $ 137,034

$ 16,500 $ 25,825
5,980

25,823
5,976

$ $ 2
4

$ 16,500 $ 31,805 $ 31.799 $ þ

$ 8,580 $ 8,580 $ +,t20 $ 4.410

$ 8,580 $ 8,580 $ 4,170 $ 4,410

1,100 100 1001

$ 1.100 $ 1 ,100 $ $ 1,100

$ 26,180 $ 41,485 $ 35,969 $ 5,516

$ 16,500 $ 16,500 $ 12,795 $ 3,705

$ 16,500 $ 16,500 $ 12,795 $ 3,705

$ 42,680 $ 57,985 $ 48,764 $ 9,221

$ 60,500 $ 45,195 $ 55,561 $ (10,366)

$ 60,500 $ 45,195 $ 55,561 $ (10.366)

$ 103,180 $ 103,180 $ 104,325 $ (1,145)

$ 13,870 $ 13,870 $ 32,70e $ 18,839

oçdFbR@tul@l@wRs12rm11cÆRffiWÁS 8/Mrs ro@a
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Special Revenue - Motor FuelTax Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

$(1

Amounts
Fi

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

s (2,640)

Total other financing sources and uses $ (122,27?l

Net change in fund balances $ . (108,405)

Fund balances, January I

Fund balances, December 31

$ 96,358

$ (122,275) $ (124,915) $ (2,640)

Otherfinancing sources and uses
Transfers out 22.275\ s (22,275\ $ (124,915)

(108,405)

96,358

$ (12,047) $ (12,047)

$

$

$ (e2,206)

$ 96,358

$ 4,152

1 6,1 99

$ 16,199

$

$

continued.
I4CAFR¡#WÆ 3j@151û@N
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Special Revenue - E-911 Services Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Local taxes

E-911 surcharge

Total local taxes

lnterest
lnterest From DePosits

Total interest

Total revenues

Expenditures
Public safety

Contractual services
Repair & maintenance
R&M - communications equiPment

Total repair & maintenance

Other contractual
I ntergovernmental service contracts

Telephones & pagers

Total other contractual

Total contractual services

Total public safetY

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources and uses
Transfers in

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, January 1

Fund balances, December 3l

$ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ I 755 8 2,255

$ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 9,755 $ 2,255

$ 50 $50
$50

154 $s 104

$ 50 $ 154 $ 104

$ 7,550 $ 7,550 $ 9,909 $ 2,359

$ 6,336 $ 6,336 $ 6.272 $ 64

$ 6,336 $ 6.336 $ 6,272 $64

$ 203,280
660

203,020
920

177,782
917

25,238
3

$ $ $

$ ?o3,e4o

$ 210,216 $ 210,276

$ 210,276

$ 184.971

$ 184,971

$ 184,971

I 25,241

$ 25,305

$ 25.305

$ 203,940 $ 178,699

$ 210.276

$ 210,276 $ 210,276 $ 25,305

$ (202,726) $ (202J26) $ (175,062) $ 27,664

$ 183,600

$ 183,600

$ 183,600

$ 183,600

190.450 $ 6,850$

$

$

(1e,126) $

2e$
(19,126) $

29$
15,388

29

$ 190,450 $ 6,850

$ 34,514

s-
$ (19,097) $ (19,097) $ 15.417 $ 34,514
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Special Revenue - Community Development Block Grant Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

o
Amounts Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive

Revenues
Grants

County grants

Total grants

Total revenues

Expenditures
Highways & streets

Contractual services
Professional services
Engineering & architectural

Total professional services

Total contractual services

Total highways & streets

Capitaloutlay
Street system construction

Total capital outlaY

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources and uses
Transfers in

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, January 1

Fund balances, December 31

$ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ $(1 00.000)

$ 100,000 $ 100,ooo $ $( 100,000)

$ 100.000 $ 100,000 $ $ (1oo,ooo)

$ $ 20,700

$ 20,700

$ 20,700

$ 20,700

$ 20.685 $ 15

$ $ 20 685 S 15

$ $ 20.685 $ 15

$ $ 20,685 $ 15

$ 1 10,000 $89 $ $ 89,300300

$ 110.000 $ 89,300 $

$ 110.000 $ 110,000 $ 20,685

$ $ $ 20,685

$ 89,300

$ 89,315

$ (1o,o0o) $ (10,000) $ (20,685) $ (10'685)

$ 20.685$$

$

$

(10,000) $

81 $

(10,000) $

81 S

$ 29,ç85

$ ?0,685

$ 10,000

$-81

$ 81 $ 10,000
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Capital Project - Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Budoeted Amounts
Orioinal Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Nes ative)

Expenditures
General government

Contractual services
Professional services
Consulting
Engineering & architectural
Legal - review
Other professional services

Total professional services

Other contractual
Bank fees & charges
Printing & copying services
Purchased program services

Total other contractual

Total contractual services

Contingencies

Total general government

Capitaloutlay
Land Acquisition and lmprovements
Building Acquisition/ConsVlmprvmnts
Park Construction / lmProvements

Total capital outlaY

Total expenditures

Excess (defìciency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources and uses
Proceeds from sale of long-term bonds

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, January 1

Fund balances, December 31

50 000

$ 56,000 $ $ 56,0!0

$ 141.000 $ e,600 $ 131.400

$ 50,000 $ 50,000 s $ 50,000

$ 191 .000 $ 191 ,000 $ 9,600 $ 181.400

$ $ 400,000
1,200,000

100,000

$ 400,000
1,200,000

$ 1,700,000 700.000 s $ 1.700 000

$ I,891,000 $ 1,891,000 $ 9,600 $ 1,881,400

$ (1,8e1,000) $ (1,891,000) $ (e,600) $ 1,881,400

2,000 .000 2,000,000 000)

$ 2,000 .000 $ 2,000,000 $ $ (2,000 .000)

$

25

$ 85.000

$ 5,000
1,000

$ '10,000

40,000
10,000
25 000

$ 85,000

$-
3,535

6,065

Lt".t

$ 10,000
36,465
10,000
18,e3ç

$ 75.400

10,000
40,000
10,000

$$ 5,000
1,000

50,000

$ 5,000
1,000

50,000

$ 56,000

$ 141,000

$400,000
,200,000

00000 100 000

$ 1,

$

$

109,000 $ 109,000 $ (9,600)

-$$
$ (118,600)

s-
$ 109.000 $ 109,000 $ (9.600) $ (1 18.600)
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Enterprise - Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Net Position - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Original
Budget

$ 930,000
5,000
2,250

Final
Budoet Actual

Variance -

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$ (14,608)
(853)
(240)

111q0

$ (14,601)

Operating revenues
Charges for Services

Water Sales
Water Meter lnstallation / Replacement
Water Turn On Fees

Water / Sewer Tap Fees

Total Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures
Late Payment Penalty

Total Fines and Forfeitures

Reimbursements
Expense Reimbursement
lnsurance Reimbursement

Total Reimbursements

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Administrative

Personal Services
ComPensation
Wages - Full Time Salaried
Wages - Full Time HourlY

Wages - Part Time HourlY

Total ComPensation

1 100

$ 937 .250 $ 937.250 $ 922,649

$ $930,000
5,000
2,250

915,392
4,147
2,010

$ 18,500

$ 18,500

$ 18.500 $ 16,,qe4 $ (1,p06)

$ (1,506)$ 18,500 $ 16,994

$ $ $ 150
5,62L

150
5.624

$

$ $ $ 5,774 $ 5,774

$ 955,750 $ 955,750 $ 945.417 $ r0,333)

$ 21,926
45,504
19.954

21,498
44,631

428
873

8,1 84

$ 21,926
45,504
19,954

$ $

$ 87,384 $

11 .770

87.384 $ 77,899 $ 9,485

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare
Employer IMRF

lnsurance - Group Life and AD&D
lnsurance - Group Medical
lnsurance - Group Dental

lnsurance - Workers ComPensation
lnsurance - Unemployment Compensation

Total Benefits

Total Personal Services

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Data Processing

Total Professional Services

Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Data Processing EquiPment

Total Repair and Maintenance

$ $ $ $6,754
15,433

441
14,940

1,398
7,063

542

6,754
15,433

441
14,940

1,398
6,993

542

5,942
13,257

189
12,149
1,314
6,811

812
2,176

252
2,791

84
182
542

$ 46,571

$ 133,955

$ 46,501 $ 39,662 $ 6,839

$ 133,885 $ 117,561 $ 16,324

$ 11.000 $ 11,000

$ 11.000 $ 1 1.000

$ 9,965

$ 9,965

$ 1,035

$ 1,035

$ 1,650 $ 1 650 $ $ 1,650

$ 1,650

continued.

1.650
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Enterprise - Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Net Position - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

Variance -
FavorableOriginal Final

Budget Actual
Operating expenses (continued)

Administrative (continued)
Contractual Services (continued)

Other Contractual
Liability lnsurance
Printing and Copying Services
Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Computer Supplies
Office Supplies
Postage

Total Commodities

Total Administrative

Cost of Sales and Services
Personal Services

Compensation
Wages - Full Time Salaried
Wages - Full Time HourlY

Wages - Part Time Hourly
Wages - Overtime

Total Compensation

Benefits
Employer FICA / Medicare
Employer IMRF

lnsurance - Group Life and AD&D
lnsurance - Group Medical
lnsurance - Group Dental
lnsurance - Workers Compensation
lnsurance - Unemployment Compensation

TotalBenefits

Total Personal Services

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Engineering and Architectural
Testing Labs

Total Professional Services

continued..

$ $ $ $33,000
4,400

660

33,000
4,400

660

30,000
3,1 05

622

3,000
1,295

38

$ 38,060 $ 38,060

$ 50,710$ 50,710

$ 33,727 $ 4,333

$. 43,692 $ 7,018

$ $
275

6 050

250
275

5,800

$ 242
61

5,572

$ 5,875

$ I
214
228

$ 6,325 $ 6,325 $ 450

$ 190,990 $ 190,920 $ 167,128 $ 23,792

$ $ $ $27,601
90,188
11,761
6,408

27,601
90,1 88

3,761
14,408

1,293
7,971
1,485

21

26,308
82,217
2,276

14 387

$ 135,958 $ 135,958

$ 10,401
23,098

1,203
52,375
3,296

10,877
812

$

125 188 $ 10,770

10,401
23,098

1,203
52,175
3,496

10,947
812

$ $9,612
18,322

569
46,551

3,473
10,946

789
4,776

634
5,624

23
1

812

$ 102,062

$ 238,020

$ 102,132 $ 89,473 $ 12_659

$ 23,429$ 238.090 $ 214,661

$ $2,200
3,300

2,200 $ $ I ,137
2,500

$ g,oez

1,063
8003 300

$ 5,500 $
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Enterprise - Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Net Position - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Variance -
FavorableOriginal

Budggt
Final

Budoet Actual

Operating expenses (continued)
Cost of Sales and Services (continued)

Contractual Services (continued)
Repair and Maintenance
R&M-Vehicles
R & M - Water & Sewer System Equipment

Total Repair and Maintenance

Other Contractual
Equipment Rental

Purchased Program Services
Utilities Location Service

Total Other Contractual

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Fuel
Landscaping Supplies
Program Supplies
Protective Clothing & EquiPment
Service & Repair Parts
Small Tools
Street Materials - Aggregate
Street Materials - Bituminum
Utilities - Village Buildings
Utilities - Public Way
Water Purchases
Water & Sewer System SuPPlies

Water & Sewer System RePair Parts

Total Commodities

Travel
Local Mileage, Parking and Tolls

Total travel

Total Cost of Sales and Services

Depreciation
Depreciation Expense

Total depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

continued.

$ 550

, 1.9,800

$ 20,350

$ 393
5,733

$ 157
67

$ 550
5,800

$ 6,350 $ 6.126 $ 224

$ $ $ 8
10
12

3,850
27,500

990

$ 5,175
87,500

915

5,167
87,490

903

$ 32,340 $ 93.590 $ 93,560 $ 30

$ 58.190 $ 105,440 s 101 .549 s 3.891

$ $ $ $11,000
275
660
275
550

1 ,100
2,750

825
880

24,200
517,000

7,700
42.900

11,875
275
900
275
550

1,440
8,815
2,990
2,945

24,200
481,000

7,675
19,900

11,875
115
899

46
1,439
8,815
2,988
2,944

16,026
480,701

6,259
18.986

160
1

275
504

1

2
1

8,174
299

1,416
914

$ 610,115 $ 562.840 $ 551,093 11 747

$ $ 25$ 23 $

$ $ 25$ 23

$ 906,325 $ 906,395 $ 867,326 $ 39.069

s 125,702

2

$ $

$ $ $ 125.702

$ 1,097,315 $ 1,097,315 $ r 150 156 $

I 565)

$ (125,702\

s (25,702)

1)
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Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Enterprise - Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Net Position - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Original Final
Variance -

Favorable
Actual

Nonoperating revenue (exPenses)
Local taxes

Property Tax
Property tax - bond & interest

Total local taxes

Capitaloutlay
Equipment - Other

Total capital outlaY

Debt service
Principal

Principal - 19988 GO bonds

Principal - 2001 Water System lmprvmnt Note

Principal - 2010 Auto Loans

Total principal

$ 483,095 $ 476,336 $ (6,759)

$ 4,695
478,400

$ 483,095

$ $ $4,695
478.400

7,015
469,321

2,320
(9,QZ9I

$$ $ 11.680) $ 1,680

1,680(1.680)

$ (485,000)
(44,558)
(15,047)

(485,000) $
(44,558)

$ $ (485,000)
(44,558)

5.047)5 04

$ (544 .605) $ (544 .605) $ $

lnterest expense
lnterest - 19988 GO bonds
lnterest - 2001 Water System lmprvmnt Note

lnterest - 2010 Auto Loans

Total interest expense (7,650) $ (7,650)

$ $ $ (100,56e)
(6,6ee)

(3e7)

$ (r0z,6qÐ

100,569
(64)

r4901

$
(6,763)

(887)
(6,763)

1887)

$

$ .255)

$ (69,160)

(210,725)

$ 100,015

Total debt service

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses)

Change in net Position

Total net position, January I

Total net position, December 3l $ (237,903) $ (237,903) $ 125,074 $ 362.977
$ .178) $

$ (552,255)

$ (69,160)

$ (107,665)

$ 366,991

152,252

$ (27,178\

$

$ 151)

362,977

s

(21O,725)

(27,178)

continued... 109



Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Enterprise - Sewer Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Net Position - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Original
Budget

Final
Actual

119,869

16,381

Variance -
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

9,869
(200,000)

Operating revenues
Charges for Services

Sewer Charges
Thorn Creek Sewer Charge
Thorn Creek Meter Reading Charge

Total Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures
Late Payment Penalty

Total Fines and Forfeitures

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Administrative

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Data Processing

$ 110,000
200,000

14,500

324,500 324,500

$ $1 10,000
200,000

14,500

$

1 881

136,250 (188,25QI

$ 4.700 $ 4,700 $ 2.213

4.700 2,'13

s Q,487\

(2,487)

$ (190,737)

4,700

$ 329,200 $ 329,200 $ 138,463

$ 286 $ 286 $ $ 286

Total Professional Services

Other Contractual
Advertising & Legal Publishing
Printing and Copying Services
Thorn Creek Sewer Pass{hru

Total Other Contractual

Contractual Services

Commodities
Postage

Total Commodities

Total Administration

Cost of Sales and Services
Contractual Services

Professional Services
Engineering and Architectural

Total Professional Services

Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Water & Sewer System Equipment

Total Repair and Maintenance

Other Contractual
lntergovernmental Fees and Dues

Purchased Program Services

Total Other Contractual

Total contractual services

8P*tjlY*;"*"*wü,2id,4cm ffikÆ m,5,ûrd

$ 220,880 $ 194 330 $ 334 $ 193,996

$ 286 $ 286 $ $ 286

330
550
000220

$ $ $330
550

193,450

$

$

330
216

193,450
334

g 221,166 $ 194,616 $ 334 $ 194,282

$ 275 $ 275 $ $ 275

$ 275 $ 275 $ $ 275

$ 221,441 $ 194,891 $ 334 $ 194,557

$ 16,500 $ 16,500

$ 16,500$ 16,500

$ 3,540 s 't2 960

$ 3,540 $ 12,960

$ 5.500 $ 5,500 $ $ 5,500

$ 5,500 $ 5,500 $ $ 5,500

$ 1,100 $ 1,100
37,550 37 538

$ 1,000 $ 100
1211 000

$ 12.100 $ 38,650 $ 38,53q $ 112

$ 34,Joo

110

$ 60,650 $ 42.O78 $ 18.572



Village of South Ghicago Heights, lllinois

Enterprise - Sewer Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Net Position - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Variance -

FavorableOriginal
Budget

Final
Budqet Actual (Unfavorable)

Operating expenses (continued)
Cost of Sales and Services (continued)

Commodities
Service & Repair Parts
Small Tools
Street Materials - Manhole Cvrs & Structures
Utilities - Public Way
Water & Sewer System SuPPlies

Water & Sewer System RePair Parts

Total Commodities

Total Cost of Sales and Services

$ $ $550
275

2,750
1,320
1,100

550
275

2,750
1,320
1,100

550
275

2,388
1,269
1,100
1,100

$

362
51

00 100

$ 7,095 $ 7,095

$ 67,745

413 $ 6.682$

$ 41,195 $ 42.491 $ 25,254

Depreciation
Depreciation Expense

Total depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenue (expenses)
Property tax
Capital outlay

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses)

lncome (loss) before transfers and contributions

Transfers in

Change in net position

Total net position, January 1

Total net position, December 31

continued...

$ $ $ 66.357 $ (66,357)

$ $ $ 66,357

$ 109,182

$ (66,357)

$ 262.636 $ 262,636 $ 153,454

$ 66,564 $ 66,564 $ 29.281 $ (37,283)

$ 4,695 $
(137,500)

$ 7,0',15 $4,695
(137,500)

2,320
137,500

$ (132,805) $ (132,805) $ 7 015 $ 139,820

36,296 102,537

(30,000)

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

(66,241) $

30,000 $

(66,241) $

30,000 $

75.123 $

$ 3ô,296

$ 1.475,123

(36,241) $ (36,241)

1,475,123

72,537

1,4

$ 1,438,882 $r $ 1,511,419 $ 72,537
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Enterprise - Property Management Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Net Position - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Variance -
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Operating revenues

Rent
Building Rentals

Total Rent

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Nondepartmental

Contractual Services
Professional Services
Legal - Review
Other Professional Services

Total Professional Services

Repair and Maintenance
R & M - Buildings & Grounds

Total Repair and Maintenance

Actual

$ 51,300 $ 51,300 $ 3,550 $ (47,750)

51,300 51,300 3,550 ø7.750\

$ 51,300 $ 51,300 $ 3,550 $ (47,750)

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ 1,100 $ 1,100 $ $ 1,100

$ 1,100 $ 1,100 $ $ 1,100

$ $ $ $

Other Contractual
Forestry & Landscaping Services
lntergovernmental Fees and Dues
Purchased Program Services
Telephone - Local, LD, Wireless, Pager

Total Other Contractual

Total contractual services

Commodities
Program Supplies
Service & Repair Parts
Utilities - Village Buildings

Total Commodities

Total Cost of Sales and Services

6s,019

$ 100,568 $ 100,568 $ 65,323 $ 35,245

$ 101,668 $ 101 ,668 $ 65,323 $ eO,g+S

$ 550
550
200

$ $550
550
200

550
550

4,878

99,000
908
660

éu'
908
356

33

304

,000
908
660

99

$

Depreciation
Depreciation Expense

Total depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

continued.

13 13 8,322

$ 14,300 L 14,300 $ 8,322 $ 5,978

$ 115,968 $ 115,968 $ 73,645 S 42.323

$ $ $ 18,1 12 $ (18,r 12)

$ $ $ 18,112 $ (18,112)

$ 115,968 $ 1t5,968 91 757 $ 24,211

$ (64,668) $ (64,668) $ (88.207)
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Enterprise - Property Management Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Net Position - Budget and Actual

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

Original
Budget

Final
Budqet Actual

Variance -
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Nonoperating revenue (expenses)

Capitaloutlay
Building Acquisition/ConsVl mprvmnts

Total capital outlay

Debt service
Principal

Principal - 2010 TIF Note

Totalprincipal

lnterest expense
lnterest - 2010 TIF Note

Total interest expense

Total debt service

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses)

lncome (loss) before transfers and contributions

Transfers in

Change in net position

Total net position, January 1,

Total net position, December 31

$ (5,500)

(5,500)

$ (5,500) $ $ (5,500)

(5,500),(5,500)

$ (97,230)

$ (e7,230)

$ (97,230) $ $ (e7,230)

$ (e7,230) $ $ (97,230)

$ (e,060)

$ (e,060)

$ (e,060) $ (8.852) $ (208)

$ (208)$ (9,060) $ (8,852)

$ (106,290) $ (106,2e0)

$ (111,790)

$ (8,852)

$ (8,852)

$ (97,438)

$ (102,e38)$(r 11,790)

$

$

(176,458) $

162,500 $

(176,458) $

162,500 $

(e7,05e) $

106,300 $

79,399

(56,200)

$

$

$

$

(13,e58)

265.202

(13,e58) $

265,202 $

9,241

265,202

$

$

23,199

$ 251,244 $ 25',1,244 $ 274,443 $ 23,199
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Fiduciary Funds

Combining Schedule of Fiduciary Net Position
December 31,2014

Pension Trust Funds
Police

Pension Fund
Firefighters

Pension Fund Total
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments, at fair value:

US Treasury securities
US government agency securities
State and municipal securities
Asset backed securities
Equity mutualfunds
Corporate bonds
Annuities

lnterest receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts / vouchers payable

Total liabilities

Net position
Held in trust for pension benefits

Total net position

$ 657,085 $ 47,381 $ 704,466

201,207
150,910
225,358
139,563
721,592
821,121
572,598

17,438

201,207
150,910
225,358
139,563
721,592
821,121
572,598

17,438

$ 3,506,872 $ 47,381 $ 3,554,253

$ 1,174 $ $ 1,174

$ 1,174 $ $ 1,174

$ 3,505,698 $ 47,381 $ 3,553,079

$ 3,505,698 $ 47,381 $ 3,553,079
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Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Fiduciary Funds

Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Forthe Year Ended December 31,2014

Additions:
Contributions

Employer
Plan member

Total contributions

lnvestment income
Net appreciation in fair value
of investments
lnterest
Dividends

Total investment income

Less investment expense

Net investment income

Total additions

Deductions:
Benefits
Administrative expense

Totaldeductions

Change in net position

Net position held in trust for pension benefits
January 1

December 3l

Police
Pension Fund

Firefighters
Pension Fund Total

$ $ 10,921 $ 128,104

. 32,865

$ 150,048 $ 10,921 $ 160,969

$ (e3,353)
95,402
76.934

$ $ (e3,353)
95,409
76,934

1',t7,183
32,865

7

$ 78,983 $ 7$ 78,990

14,261

$ 64.722

4,26

$ 7 $ 64,729

$ 214 770 $ 10,928 $ 225,698

$ 210,512
4,618

22,645
514

233,157
5.132

$ $

$ 215,130 $ 23,159 $ 238,289

$ (360) $ (12,231) $ n2.591\

$ 3,506,058 $5e 612 $ 3,565,670

$ 3,50 5.698 $ 47,381 $ 3,553,079

endFb@\s@|lsWR*12ldr.CÆR!¡MlaCÆÂffi Mr5 1û6N 115



Village of South Chicago Heights, lllinois

Long-Term Debt Requirements
Series 19988 General Obligation (Capital Appreciation) Bonds
Partial Refunding and Water System lmprovements

December 31 2014

FiscalYear
Ending

December 31

Date of Maturity: 111112018
Authorization lssue: $ 1,347,702
lnterest Rate: 4.50o/o - 4.75o/o

412,115
441,324
472,150
504,692

$ 1,830,281

Current and Future Principal and lnterest Requirements

Principal lnterest

2015
2016
2017
2018

82,885
63,676
42,850
20,308

Total

495,000
505,000
515,000
525,000

$ 2,040,000Totals $ 209,719
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